DUE TO THE COVID-19
CONCONSIDERATIONS, Council
Chambers is open with limited
accessibility. Council Meetings and
Public Meetings are open to public 20% capacity of
Council Chambers. All guests will practice physical
distancing as recommended. Citizens are
encouraged to watch the meetings from home.

Watch Live via YouTube at:
https://www.youtube.c channel/UCBmlogX05cKAsHm ClIA

To Participate in Public Comment, please email to
comments@jaspercountysc.gov and or mail to Attn: Clerk to Council P.O.

~ Box 1149 Ridgeland, SC 29936. To be called for public Comment, please
email at the mentioned email address. *Public Comments must be
submitted by Monday, February 7, 2022, at 1:00pm.*

To participate in a Public Hearing, you may either email to
comments@jaspercountysc.gov or request via email or phone by 1:00pm
on Monday, February 7, 2022, to speak via telephone at the Virtual
Council Meeting.

Instructions may also be found at the Jasper County website
WWW.jaspercountysc.gov
FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE CALL (843) 717-3696




JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

COUNCIL MEETING

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg
358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936

Monday, February 7, 2022

AGENDA

4:00 P.M.

1. Call to Order by Chairperson

Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act.
**In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted and

furnished to all news media and persons requesting notification**

5:00 P.M.

II. Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons:

(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed
purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to a
pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client
privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary
situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim ~ BJWSA-Flood Determination ;
Register of Deeds Software; Election Matters

(4) Discussion regarding the development of security personnel or devices: Security Measures

(5) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision
of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in
the area served by a public body - Project Silverman; Jasper Ocean Terminal {JOT); Projects

Dolphin and Mandolin.

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE DISCUSSION
SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND COUNCIL MAY
RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

6:00 P.M.
lIl. Return to Open Session
1
Agenda - 02.07.2022



Iv.

VL

VIL

VIIL

IX.

XL

Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation

Invocation

Approval of Agenda

Approval of the Minutes of 01.03.2022, 01.13.2022 and 01.18.2022:
Presentation and Proclamations: None

Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 any citizen of the County may sign to speak before
the Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will be
limited to three (3) minutes and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes.

*Please submit Public Comments via email at comments@jaspercountyscgov or via US Mail at Attention:
Clerk to Council P.0. Box 1149 Ridgeland, SC 29936. If you would like to be contacted by phone during Open

Eloor, please email your name, address and phone number to the email address listed above.

Resolutions: None
Ordinances:

A: David Tedder - Public Hearing and 2nd Reading of Ordinance # 02022-01_an Ordinance to
Reapportion and Redistrict the Four (4) Election Districts for the election of Jasper County
Council Members based upon the 2020 Decennial Census in order that the population of such
Districts shall comply with the Voting Rights Act of 1965 and South Carolina Law.

B: David Tedder -2 Reading of Ordinance # 2021-29 authorizing the execution and delivery
of a Fee-In-Lieu of Tax Agreement by and between a company known for the time being as
“Project Mandolin” (the “Company”) and Jasper County, whereby Jasper County will enter into
a Fee-In-Lieu of Tax Agreement with the Company and providing for payment by the Company
of certain Fees-In-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes; providing for Special Source Revenue Credits in
connection with such Agreement; providing for the allocation of Fees-In-Lieu of Taxes payable
under the Agreement for the establishment of a Multi-County Industrial/Business Park; and
other matters relating thereto.

C: David Tedder -2"¢ Reading of Ordinance # 2021-30 authorizing the execution and delivery
of a Fee-In-Lieu of Tax Agreement by and between a company known for the time being as
“Project Dolphin” (the “Company”}) and Jasper County, whereby Jasper County will enter into a
Fee-In-Lieu of Tax Agreement with the Company and providing for payment by the Company
of certain Fees-In-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes; providing for Special Source Revenue Credits in
connection with such Agreement; providing for the allocation of Fees-In-Lieu of Taxes payable
under the agreement for the establishment of a Multi-County Industrial/Business Park; and
other matters relating thereto.

D: Lisa Wagner - Consideration of the 1t Reading of an Ordinance to adopt Planned
Development District Zoning for two tracts of land consisting of approximately

2
Agenda - 02.07.2022



226.94 acres, bearing Jasper County Tax Map Numbers 041-00-02-010 and 041-00-
02-012 and known as 95 Logistics Center.

E: David Tedder - Consideration of the 15* Reading of an Ordinance approving a
Development Agreement for 95 logistics Center pursuant to the South Carolina Local
Government Development Agreement Act and Article IV, Title 20 of the Code of
Ordinances of Jasper County, and authorizing the Chairman of Jasper County Council
to execute said Development Agreement.

F: Lisa Wagner - Consideration of the 1t Reading of an Ordinance to amend the Official
Zoning Map of Jasper County so as to transfer a 26.22 acre portion of property, as
depicted on the attached plat, and bearing Jasper County Tax Map Number 071-00-00-
009, from the Rural Preservation Zone to the Resource Extraction on the Jasper County
Official Zoning Map.

XIl. New Business:
A: Danny Lucas - Request to adopt D/B/A name for the Ridgeland Claude Dean Airport
XIIl. Old Business:
A: Chief Russell Wells - COVID update
X1IV. Council Members Comments
XV. Administrator’'s Report

XVL. Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda Item
IL

XVIL. Adjourn

*Council may act on any item appearing on the agenda including items discussed in executive
session.

In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the
meeting was posted on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place and on the county website at
least 24 hours prior to the meeting. A copy of the agenda was given to the local news media and posted at the
meeting location twenty-four hours prior to the meeting,

3
Agenda - 02.07.2022



AGENDA ITEM:
VII

Approval of the Minutes



JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

VIRTUAL MEETING

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg
358 3r1 Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936

January 3, 2022

MINUTES

Officials Present: Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark, Vice Chairman Dr. Curtis Brantley
Councilman L. Martin Sauls, Councilman Pastor Alvin Adkins and Councilman John Kemp.

Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda H. Simmons, County
Attorney David Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Russell Wells, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.

Chairwoman Clark called the meeting to order at 5:00PM and read the information below for the
executive session.

Motion to go into executive session: Councilman Sauls
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.
(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons:

(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion,
discipline, or release of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or
the appointment of a person to a public body -Detention Center

(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed
purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to a
pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client
privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary
situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim -Levy VFD; Rivers Reach;
Davis v Jasper County; Airport Leases

(5) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision
of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in
the area served by a public body - Jasper Ocean Terminal (JOT); Prospect Update;

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE
DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME,
AND COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE
OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

Return to Open Session:

1
M -01.03.2022



Motion to return to open session: Councilman Kemp
Second: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
Vote: Unanimous

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman Kemp and the Invocation was given by Vice Chairman
Dr. Brantley.

Chairwoman Clark asked the Clerk to Council to read the Report of Compliance to the Freedom of
Information Act. Ms. Simmons, Clerk to Council read the Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the
Freedom of Information Act.

Chairwoman Clark then turned the meeting over to County Administrator, Andrew Fulghum for the
Election of a Chairperson.

Election of Officers:
A. Andrew Fulghum - Election of Chairperson

Mr. Fulghum opened the floor for nominations of a Chairperson for the County Council. Councilman Sauls
nominated Councilwoman Clark. Councilwoman Clark seconded that nomination.

Councilman Kemp nominated Councilman Brantley. Mr, Fulghum stated that since there were two names
that he would start with Councilwoman Clark and do a roll call vote.

Vote for Councilwoman Clark to continue as the Chairperson of the County Council:

Councilman Dr. Brantley: Abstain

Councilman Sauls: Yes

Councilman Adkins: Yes

Councilwoman Clark: Yes

Councilman Kemp: No

Mr. Fulghum asked Mr. Tedder that since this was a 3 to 2 vote, if a second vote was needed. Mr. Tedder
noted that since this vote passed with a majority of the votes that a 2" vote is not needed. Mr. Fulghum
declared Councilwoman Clark as the Chairperson.

B. Chairperson - Election of Vice Chairperson

Councilman Sauls nominated Councilman Dr. Brantley to continue on as Vice Chairman, and
Councilman Adkins seconded that nomination. A roll call vote was taken.

Vote for Councilman Dr. Brantley to continue as the Vice Chairperson of the County Council:
Councilman Dr. Brantley: Yes

Councilman Sauls: Yes

Councilman Adkins: Yes

Councilwoman Clark: Yes

Councilman Kemp: Abstain

Chairwoman Clark said that Councilman Dr. Brantley will continue on as Vice Chairman of the County
Council.

Approval of Agenda

Motion to approve: Councilman Sauls
Second: Councilman Adkins

2
M -01.03.2022



Vote: Unanimous
The motion passed.

Approval of the Minutes of 11.18.2021:

Motion to approve: Councilman Sauls

Second: Councilman Adkins

Chairwoman Clark called for the vote and Council Kemp commented to Chairwoman Clark that he
had a few additions to the minutes that were left out. He noted that he had questioned what the
yearly additional charge in the 911 contract was for and asked for clarification of the firewall,

Chief Wells stated that this referred to the firewall because there are two separate routes of
communication that would come in, one being is via phone and the other one via text which would
mean two separate firewalls.

Councilman Kemp asked about the fee. Chief Wells said it would be a one-time fee. Councilman
Kemp asked why it noted that it contracts annually. Chief Wells noted that he would pull that back
up but this was for a five year the term. He mentioned that those five years should have been all
encompassed into the total price. Councilman Kemp stated that the question was regarding that it
wasn't in the minutes, so he said that needed to get straight.

Mr. Tedder noted to Madam Chair that he could try to provide some assistance. Chairwoman
Clark said to please go ahead. Mr. Tedder noted that at this point since there was a question about
the minutes one of two things could occur. One option he noted was that Councilman Kemp or
someone else could suggest a written amendment to be adopted and the second thing is that this
could be tabled until the next meeting so that whatever insertions that would need to be made
could be brought to the Council for approval on the meeting for the 18t%h, He noted that either way
would be alright, so it would either be someone making a motion to table to the next meeting or
make an amendment.

Councilman Kemp said he would make that motion.

Ms. Simmons Clerk to Council asked Chairwoman Clark if she could ask a question. Chairwoman
Clark noted to please go ahead. Ms. Simmons said that these minutes are from 11.18.2021, and
there were only two items on the agenda. One item was presented by David Tedder with a public
hearing and third reading of Ordinance # 2021-27 which related to Builders Firstsource and the
other item was New Business by Danny Lucas for a presentation of a temporary airport terminal
proposal. She apologized for the question but then noted that she was not sure where the 911
discussion would fit in with either of those items.

Councilman Kemp said it was because the contract and that the minutes that she had provided
them. He said Council was given a contract that they talked about on 11.18.2021, and that they
only had one meeting on 11.18.2021. After a moment or so, Councilman Kemp then noted that he
believed he may have gotten that wrong on the date of the minutes. Ms. Simmons noted that he
may be referring to the 12.06.2021 minutes which would be approved at the next meeting.
Motion to approve: Councilman Kemp

Second: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Presentation and Proclamations: None
Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 any citizen of the County may sign to speak before
the Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will be
limited to three (3) minutes and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes.
3
M —-01.03.2022



Chairwoman Clark asked if any public comments had been received. Ms. Simmons noted that she
had received two public comments for this meeting. She noted that one was from Karen Haynes,
and it was received on Wednesday December 29th at 1:43 PM. She noted that Ms. Haynes resides
in Blackshear Georgia and owns property in Jasper County. She noted that Ms. Haynes comment
related to the Silverman Group Project and that this public comment consisted of 43 pages. She
said due to its length it was placed into the Council Agenda E- packet for Council’s review. She
said that this public comment for public viewing could be located on the County website in the
January 3, 2022, agenda e-packet. She noted that the second public comment was from Aaron
Saxon. She said Mr. Saxon’s comment was received on Sunday, January 2, 2022, at 8:19 PM, and
that with Council’s permission she would read that for the record I will read that now.
Chairwoman Clark said to read that please. Mr. Saxon’s comment was read for the record.

Resolutions:

A: David Tedder - Resolution # R2022-01 to set the fees for a Peddlers and Hawkers License
Section 40-41-30 South Carolina Code.

Mr. Tedder was present to address and to review this request with Council. He referred to the old statute
and noted that this is an item that County Council must do every year to set the fees for the Peddlers and
Hawkers License. Mr. Tedder noted that this was a part of our business license ordinance. He also noted
that a person could go to the Clerk of Courts office to obtain a Peddlers and Hawkers License instead of
going to the business license department. Councilman Kemp asked if this applied to the municipalities.
He also asked if they Hawk In the municipalities do they need to get a license in the County.

Mr. Tedder noted that this only applies to the unincorporated area. Councilman Kemp stated that within
the resolution it needs to note that it only applies to the unincorporated areas of Jasper County and he
would like to know who gets the fees. Mr. Tedder said that change could be made and that the fees go to
Jasper County.

Motion to adopt Resolution # R2022-01 and to incorporate the passage noting this would be for
the unincorporated areas of Jasper County: Councilman Kemp

Second: Councilman Sauls

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Ordinances:

A: Andrew Fulghum - Public Hearing and 3 Reading of Ordinance # 2021-33 on the Lease
Agreement with Jasper Animal Rescue Mission (JARM).

Mr. Fulghum was present to address and review this item with Council. He reviewed the lease
agreement and noted the term of the lease. The public hearing was opened but since there was no
public input it was closed.

Motion to adopt Ordinance # 2021-33 on the 3 reading: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
Second: Councilman Sauls

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

4
M -01.03.2022



B: Andrew Fulghum - Public Hearing and 3¢ Reading of Ordinance # 2021-34 on the Lease
Agreement with Jasper County Chamber of Commerce (Perry House).

Mr. Fulghum was present to address and review this item with Council. He reviewed the lease
agreement and noted the term of the lease. The public hearing was opened but since there was no
public input it was closed. Councilman Sauls recused himself from voting on this item.

Motion to adopt Ordinance # 2021-34 on the 3 reading: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

New Business:

A: Wanda Simmons - Adoption of the Jasper County Council Meeting Schedule for 2022,

Ms. Simmons was present to address this item with Council. She noted that this item had been provided
to them at the 12.06.2021 meeting for their review. She noted the following changes to the revised
Meeting Schedule that Council had been provided:

e The regular session start time has been changed from 6:30pm to 6:00pm for all meetings.

¢ During the months of June, July and August.
o InJune we removed the June 20t meeting because that is now the Juneteenth Holiday
o InJuly Council usually only has one Council Meeting
o In August the August 8t Meeting Date appears to be during the SCAC Conference

Old Business:
A: Chief Russell Wells - COVID update

Chief Wells noted that the positivity rates for COVID were on the rise. Jasper County was currently at a
10.3% positivity rate (up 3.7% since the last report). South Carolina was currently ata 12.3%
positivity rate (up 7.7% since the last report). He noted that the Omicron strain had increased
transmission and had the ability to evade past COVID and vaccines. He also discussed what Matrix
Medical was doing for the County. Chief Wells then provided the testing site locations and the vaccine
locations throughout the County for Council.

Council Members Comments:

Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley:
Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley expressed his appreciation for County Council during the passing of his
sister. He wished everyone a prosperous new year and asked that God Bless them.

Councilman Kemp:

Councilman Kemp noted that he had been to the Bluffton / Jasper County EOC Winter Festival and met
James Williams. He noted that the emails for public comments at comments@jaspercountysc.gov is a
catch all email and not specifically for just public comments. He noted that this needed to be

considered for a new email address but for now everyone needed to know that they would need to put
Public Comment in the Subject Line.

5
M —-01.03.2022



Councilman Sauls:

Councilman Sauls asked to keep the family of DeAndre in their prayers for the drive by shotting that
had taken place. He said that he fully supports the Sheriff's Dept in trying to locate this individual. He
thanked Council and Staff for the 2021 year and all that had been accomplished. He noted it had been
a great year for Economic Development and that he was looking forward to 2022.

Chairwoman Clark:

Chairwoman Clark wished everyone a happy new year. She offered her sympathies to Vice Chairman
Dr. Brantley and noted with all going on that she had not been aware of the passing of his sister. She
thanked everyone who had voted for her to be the Chairperson again this year. She said she was
elated to work with such a dynamic staff. Chairwoman Clark said she was elated to work with such a
dynamic staff. She said that our staff is dedicated and works very well together and she hopes they
keep on working together. She urged County Council to be mindful of how they attend meetings and
what they say because sometimes people just looking for a lawsuit.

Councilman AdKins:

Councilman Adkins thanked God for everything in his life and for the Merry Christmas and Happy New
Year they had this year. He thanked God for Chairwoman Clark getting back up to good health. He
asked prayers for Dr. Brantley and his family and for DeAndre's family and noted that he hoped
someone came forward. He thanked God for a great 2021 and noted he will be riding throughout the
County. He asked that everyone keep him and his family in prayer and he noted he would do the same
for them.

Administrator’s Report:

Mr. Fulghum noted that he had nothing new to report other than his report in the packet. He did
remind council that they have received their Benchmark Report on the reapportionment process and
that a workshop had been scheduled for 01.13.2022 at 5:30PM. This would be the opportunity to
review the Benchmark Report with the staff that had prepared this report from the SC Revenue and
Fiscal Affairs Office. Mr. Fulghum congratulated Chairwoman Clark and Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley on
their elections this evening., He noted as Council had his written report that he was available to
answer any questions.

Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda Item
II. There was no need to return to executive session at this time.

Adjourn;:

Motion to adjourn: Councilman Sauls
Second: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
Vote: Unanimous

The meeting adjourned at 6:42pm.

Respectfully submitted: Approved:
Wanda H. Simmons Barbara B. Clark
Clerk to Council Chairwoman

6

M -01.03.2022



JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

VIRTUAL WORKSHOP
Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg
358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936

January 13, 2022
MINUTES

Officials Present: Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark, Councilman Pastor Alvin Adkins and Councilman
John Kemp, Vice Chairman Dr. Curtis Brantley - Absent: Councilman L. Martin Sauls,

Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda H. Simmons,
County Attorney David Tedder, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.
Also Present: Mr. Frank Rainwater, Executive Director of Mapping and Operations.

Chairwoman Clark called the workshop to order at 5:30PM. Chairwoman Clark asked the Clerk to
Council to read the Report of Compliance to the Freedom of Information Act. Wanda Simmons,
Clerk to Council read the Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act. The

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman Kemp and the Invocation was given by Councilman
Adkins.

Chairwoman Clark welcomed guest Mr. Frank Rainwater, Executive Director of Mapping and
Operations to the workshop. She then turned the meeting over to County Administrator Andrew
Fulghum. Mr. Fulghum noted that the County had asked for assistance from the SC Revenue and Fiscal
Affairs Office. He noted that the SC Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office had prepared a Benchmark
Report for Council. He said they were here to answer any questions on this report or any other
information relating to it. Mr. Fulghum also noted that on 12.06.2021 the County Council had
approved Resolution # 2021-28 establishing the criteria to be used for the reapportionment of the Jasper
County Council Districts as to population following the adoption of the Federal Decennial Census as

required by S.C. CODE ANN. § 4-9-90. Mr. Fulghum also noted that none of the incumbents would be
affected by this boundary change.

Mr. Fulghum then introduced Mr. Rainwater and turned the floor over to him. Mr. Rainwater introduced
his staff Kathryn Kelley and Adam DeMars that had worked on this project with him.

Discussion on the Redistricting of Jasper County Council Districts and the Schedule for Adoption:

Mr. Rainwater noted that he would be discussing the Benchmark Report and that Adam would talk
about the map that had been created. Mr. Rainwater went through the Benchmark Report and reviewed
each slide for Council. Mr. Rainwater reviewed the slide entitled, “Considerations for Preliminary Plan”,
with Council noting the three principles in developing a preliminary plan that were recommended.
The next slide entitled, “2020 Census Benchmark Report”, was then reviewed with Council and the one
person one vote was discussed. Mr. Rainwater reviewed Table 1: 2020 Census Counts applied to
current districts on Chart 1 and noted the over and under of districts 1-4 and the percent of deviation
in each district. The next slide he discussed had Table 2: Total Population by Race and Table 3: Voting
Age Population by Race. He also discussed the Voting Rights Act.

M-01.13.2022
1



Mr. Rainwater noted that this was a good placed to stop for questions. Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
asked that once County make a determination of the lines to be drawn, does this have to be sent into
the State or Federal Government? Mr. Rainwater stated that they did not have to. He noted that this is
Council’s plan and once it is adopted on the 37 reading that Council would give a copy over to the Voter
Registration Office. Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley noted that the ordinance would need to go thru three
readings and Mr. Rainwater said yes that this way the public could respond. Councilman Kemp noted
that in Jasper County voters vote at large and Mr. Rainwater said yes and that 2 other counties did that
as well. Councilman Kemp also stated to Mr. Rainwater that they had three incumbents in the same
district on the map they had prepared and drawn. Mr. Rainwater said if this was the case that this would
be corrected.

Mr. Rainwater returned to the presentation and the next slide he reviewed was entitled, "RFA Analysis
Results”. He then discussed the RFA Recommendations and noted the following information: that
districts and wards will be drawn contiguously and that districts need to look compact; that districts or
wards will be drawn to minimize the division of voting precincts; that districts or wards will be drawn,
when feasible, with respect to existing districts and communities of interest; RFA recommends Council
consider excluding prison population when redrawing the districts. The maps included in the packet
were discussed. Mr. Fulghum noted that the timeframe for adopting the new map was by the end of
February because in March the filing for the County Council seats will begin. Mr. Fulghum noted that
the staff had prepared and ordinance for the 1st reading for the 01.18.2022 agenda. Mr. Fulghum noted
that a Public Hearing and 2" reading would be on 02.07.2022 and that a Public Hearing and 3 reading
would be on 02.22.2022.

Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley asked that if they could not come into agreement with the maps if they could
operate under the current districts. Mr. Rainwater noted that state laws require counties to redistrict
by the next General Election. Chairwoman Clark noted that Council would be looking over the maps.
There was a little more discussion and then Chairwoman Clark and Council thanked Mr. Rainwater and
staff for their assistance and for coming to the workshop. Mr. Rainwater noted that he had enjoyed
working with the County Staff. A copy of the Redistricting Benchmark Report - Jasper County and a
copy of the Question-and-Answer Facts Document for the Redistricting in South Carolina prepared by
the South Carolina Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office is attached to the minutes as Attachment “A”.
Resolution Number 2021-28 is attached as Attachment “B”. This meeting can be watched online for

further information at https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmlogX05¢KAsHm ggXCJIA .

Adjourn:

Motion to adjourn: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
Second: Councilman Kemp

Vote: Unanimous

The meeting adjourned at 6:16pm.

Respectfully submitted: Approved:

Wanda H. Simmons Barbara B. Clark

Clerk to Council Chairwoman
M-01.13.2022

2



Wanda Simmons
“

From: Willie Aiken

Sent: Thursday, February 3, 2022 10:32 AM
To: Wanda Simmons

Subject: Re: Council

That will be fine.

Willie P. Aiken Il

County Coroner

Jasper County

P.O. Box 614

Ridgeland, SC 29936
(843)547-8296~ Office
(843)547-8299~ fax
waiken@jaspercountysc.gov

On Feb 3, 2022, at 10:25 AM, Wanda Simmons <wsimmons@jaspercountysc.gov> wrote:

Good morning Coroner Aiken,

Our agenda for this meeting 02.07.2022 is already completed and set, but I can put you on the
02.22.2022 Council Meeting,

Thank you,
Wanda

From: Willie Aiken <waiken@jaspercountysc.gov>
Sent: Thursday, February 3, 2022 10:04 AM

To: Wanda Simmons <wsimmons@jaspercountysc.gov>
Subject: Council

Good morning, | was advise that | need to come before the council. | need to be placed on the agenda once
again.

Willie P. Aiken il

County Coroner

Jasper County

P.0. Box 614

Ridgeland, SC 29936
(843)547-8296~ Office
{843)547-8299" fax
waiken@jaspercountysc.gov




JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

VIRTUAL MEETING
Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg
358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936

Tuesday, January 18, 2022
MINUTES

Officials Present: Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark, Vice Chairman Dr. Curtis Brantley, Councilman
Pastor Alvin Adkins, Councilman John Kemp, and Councilman L. Martin Sauls (absent at Executive
Session, but was present for the regular session)

Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda H. Simmons,
County Attorney David Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Russell Wells, and Videographer Jonathan
Dunham.

Chairwoman Clark called the meeting to order at 4:30PM. Chairwoman Clark asked the Clerk to
Council to read the Report of Compliance to the Freedom of Information Act. Wanda Simmons,
Clerk to Council read the Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act.
Chairwoman Clark read the information below for the executive session.

Motion to go into executive session: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
Second: Councilman Kemp

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.
(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons:

(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion,

discipline, or release of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or

the appointment of a person to a public body ~Premium Pay; Detention Center; Jasper County
Aeronautics Commission

(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed
purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to a
pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client
privilege, settlement oflegal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary
situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim - Jet Strategic Partnmers LLC;
Sgt. Jasper Park

(4) Discussion regarding the development of security personnel or devices: Security Measures

(5) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision

of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in

the area served by a public body - Jasper Ocean Terminal (JOT); Projects Dolphin, Mandolin, Six
Pack and Prospect Update

1
M -01.18.2022



ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE
DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME,
AND COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE
OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

Return to Open Session:

Motion to return to regular session: Councilman Sauls
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman Sauls and the Invocation was given by Councilman
Adkins.

Business from Executive Session:

Motion to authorize the administrator to provide a stipend to detention center employees,
excluding the director and his administrative staff, for those employees working extra
shifts, in the amount of $300.00 per pay period, with the administration administering the
program to assure that all employees have an opportunity to participate in an equitable
manner in the program, with funding coming from the already appropriated funds for
detention center wages,; and that the administrator authorized to discontinue the program
once staffing levels are stabilized: Councilman Sauls

Second: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Motion to authorize the administrator to procure the services of Jet Strategic Partners, LLC,
upon the terms discussed in executive session: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley

Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Motion to authorize the administrator to procure the security measures discussed in
executive session in an amount not to exceed $50,000: Councilman Adkins

Second: Councilman Sauls

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Approval of Agenda:

Motion to approve: Councilman Adkins
Second: Councilman Sauls

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Approval of the Minutes of 12.06.2021:
Motion to approve the minutes of 12.06.2021: Councilman Sauls
Second: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley

2
M -01.18.2022



Vote: Unanimous
The motion passed.

Presentation and Proclamations: None

Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 any citizen of the County may sign to speak before
the Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will be
limited to three (3) minutes and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes.

Clerk to Council Ms. Simmons noted that no public comments had been received.

Resolutions:

A: Kimberly Burgess - Consideration of Resolution # R-2022-02 to amend Resolution to amend
and supplement Resolution # 2021-20, as Amended on September 24, 2021, regarding the
Implementation Of Premium Pay Funded by Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds.

Ms. Burgess was present to address this resolution request. She noted that this was a
consideration of approval of Resolution # R-2022-02 that would amend and supplement Resolution #
2021-20, as Amended on September 24, 2021, regarding the implementation of premium pay funded by
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. She noted that this would apply to certain
Elected offices, Magistrate Judge, Probate judge and would provide for a grant. She noted that the
total amount of the request was for $42,888. Chairwoman Clark stated this had been discussed in
Executive Session and that it was recommended to table until Council could hear from the US
Treasury in April regarding the use of ARPA Funds.

Motion to table: Councilman Sauls
Second: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
Vote: Unanimous

The motion was tabled.

B: David Tedder - Resolution # R-2022-03 to declare certain property to be
surplus and authorize its sale or disposition - Sheriff's Department used
trailer/mobile office.

Mr. Tedder was present to address this resclution request. Mr. Tedder noted that the County had
the ability to surplus vehicles thru the County procurement office. He noted as he understood it
this was a former modular schoolroom. He said this resolution would allow the County to get rid
of it by bid or have it moved. He noted that the Chief Procurement Officer would decide what to
do with this property. Councilman Kemp asked if anyone had said it was their property. Mr.
Tedder said that they had discussed this with the Sheriff and Deputy and that years ago it had
come from the School Board. He noted that it was possibly a former Sheriff that may have
promised it to someone but there was no documentation on this. He also noted it was not
registered anywhere and no one had come forward to claim the property.

Motion to approve and declare this trailer surplus: Councilman Kemp
Second: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

3
M ~-01.18.2022



Ordinances:

A: David Tedder - Consideration of a First reading of an Ordinance to Reapportion and
Redistrict the Four (4) Election Districts for the election of Jasper County Council Members
based upon the 2020 Decennial Census in order that the population of such Districts shall
comply with the Voting Rights Act of 1965 and South Carolina Law.

Mr. Tedder was present to address this first reading of the ordinance request. He noted that the
public hearings for this Ordinance would be held on 02,07.2022 and on 02.22.2022. He also noted
that in recent months the Council had received information on the census and the redistricting.
The Council had previously adopted a resolution and the SC Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office had
been drafting the maps. He also noted that Council attended a Virtual Workshop with SC Revenue
and Fiscal Affairs Office Staff on January 13*. He also mentioned that large maps will be placed
throughout the County at specific locations.

Motion to approve: Councilman Sauls

Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: All votes were yes, except Vice Chairman Brantley who abstained from the vote until he
could review the maps.

The motion passed.

New Business:
A: Kimberly Burgess - Container and Compactor Bid Presentation.

Ms. Burgess was present to address this bid presentation request. She noted that Jasper County
had advertised for sealed bids for four (4) 25-yard open-top containers and one (1) 39-yard self-
contained compactor. She said the County received two bids. The low bidder she noted was Bakers
Waste Equipment, Inc. at $66,085.61 including sales tax and shipping.

She noted that Staff requests that the County Council accept the bid proposal from Baker Waste
Equipment, Inc. not to exceed $57,000 including sales tax and shipping and to allow the County
Administrator to enter into an agreement for the purchase and delivery of the equipment.

Motion to approve: Councilman Sauls
Second: Councilman Adkins

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

B: Lyn Boyles - Request for additional appropriation for the Keep Jasper Beautiful Program.

Ms. Burgess was present to address this additional appropriation for the Keep Jasper Beautiful
Program request. The Keep Jasper County Beautiful program is requesting an additional
appropriation of $25,000 to hire contractors to provide litter pick-up on highly traveled littered
roads in Jasper County. There are approximately 10 “hot spot” roads that the Keep Jasper County
Beautiful program would like to provide litter pick up using contractors rather than volunteers.
She noted that the Staff requests that the County Council approve the budget transfer of $25,000
from line item 010-088-2342 to 010-092-2342 to provide additional funding to hire contractors

4
M -01.18.2022



for litter pick up. Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley asked if we had given them money for this year yet.
Ms. Burgess said that money had been given to them earlier this year.

Motion to approve: Councilman Sauls
Second: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

Old Business:
A: Chief Russell Wells - COVID update
Chief Wells

Chief Wells noted that the positivity rates for COVID were on the rise. Jasper County was currently at a
36.1% positivity rate. South Carolina was currently at a 29.3% positivity rate. He noted that the daily
case count was up significantly. He provided the community information and testing, site locations as
well as the vaccine locations throughout the County for Council. He also provided DHEC Updates
widespread vendor testing delay information.

Council Members Comments:

Councilman Sauls:
Councilman Sauls thanked everyone for keeping him in their thoughts and prayers. He urged
everyone to safe and healthy.

Councilman Adkins:

Councilman Adkins thanked God for everything in his life and thanked God for raising Councilman
Sauls up. He requested prayers for the family of the 5 year old and he asked everyone to keep him in
prayer

Councilman Kemp:

Councilman Kemp noted that he had went to the Levy Community meeting on January 11t and that
Sheriff Hipp, the State Police and the Mayor of Hardeeville was there. He noted the main subject was
traffic. He said he had attended the FIT luncheon and noted that there were a lot of volunteers. He
said he had attended the Town of Ridgeland Council Meeting and noted that the development of
housing around the airport was moving forward. He said he had attended the USCB meeting, the MLK
Celebration, the JARM and that on Monday he had personally set up a Meet and Greet for himself with
the public at the Pratt Library.

Vice Chairman Dr, Brantley:

Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley said he encouraged everyone to get involved in the upcoming redistricting
plan to get everyone fully represented. It was noted that Council needed to have a single member
district opposed to at large as we are one of the two counties with at large voting.

Administrator’s Report:

Mr. Fulghum noted that the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2021 was
read. He noted they would put a copy in Council’s mailbox and will put it on the website. He noted that
Chief Wells had a brief update for Council. Chief Wells noted that on 1/13/2022 he had met wit the
5
M -01.18.2022



Executive Officers of the City of Hardeeville Fire Department to discuss aid and mutual aid. He said
they had massaged out a good plan and updated exhibits. He noted that they hoped to have that out in
late February. He said he was happy to report that it seemed that have a more fluid and stable

working relationship.

Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda Item
II. There was no need to return to executive session at this time.

Adjourn:

Motion to adjourn: Vice Chairman Dr. Brantley
Second: Councilman Sauls

Vote: Unanimous

The meeting adjourned at 6:40PM.

Respectfully submitted: Approved:
Wanda H. Simmons Barbara B. Clark
Clerk to Council Chairwoman

6

M-01.18.2022



AGENDA ITEM:
XI-A

Ordinance item A

—_—



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF JASPER
ORDINANCE NO. 0-2022-01

AN ORDINANCE TO REAPPORTION AND REDISTRICT THE FOUR (4)
ELECTION DISTRICTS FOR THE ELECTION OF JASPER COUNTY
COUNCIL MEMBERS BASED UPON THE 2020 DECENNIAL CENSUS IN
ORDER THAT THE POPULATION OF SUCH DISTRICTS SHALL COMPLY
WITH THE VOTING RIGHTS ACT OF 1965 AND SOUTH CAROLINA LAW.

ARTICLEI
FINDINGS OF FACT

Section 1.01. Recitals and Statement of Purpose.

Incident to the adoption of this Ordinance, the County Council of Jasper County,
South Carolina (the “Council”), the governing body of Jasper County, South Carolina
(the “County”), finds, as a fact, that each of the statements hereinafter set forth In

Article I is in all respects True and correct.

(a) The United States Department of Commerce has declared final the

results of the federal decennial census of 2020 (the “2020 Census”).

(b) In compliance with the United States Constitution, the Constitution

of the State of South Carolina, Title 4, Chapter g of the South Carolina Code of



Laws, 1976, as amended, and the United States Voting Rights Act of 1965, as
amended, the Council has determined to realign the electoral districts for the
election of members of Council in accordance with 2020 census and is adopting

this Ordinance for that purpose.

(c) In creating a reapportionment and redistricting plan, County Council first
adopted Resolution 2021- on December 6, 2021, setting forth the
considerations to be utilized in creating new district boundaries, and County

Council finds those considerations to have been fairly incorporated in the Plan as

described below.
ARTICLE 11
ADQPTION OF PLAN
Section 2.01 New District Lines.

From and after the Effective Date of this Ordinance as defined in Article VI
below, the County shall be divided into four (4) new districts (the “New Districts”) for
the purposes of electing members to the Council, and the previous District boundaries
are repealed.. Each New District shall be entitled to have one of its residents elected by
at-large county-wide voting in accordance with the Jasper County Ordinance providing
for the method of electing council members adopted on June 25, 1976 and pursuant to
Section 4-9-90 and Section 4-9-10, South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended.

The fifth member of council shall continue be elected at-large county wide without a



residency requirement. The New Districts are as defined and delineated on the on the

[4]

map entitled ) , based on the statistical data

pertaining to such Districts as described contained in Exhibit A attached hereto. The
New Districts contained in this ordinance, the statistical data pertaining to such
districts, and the maps delineating these districts have been provided by the South
Carolina Department of Revenue and Fiscal Affairs. These maps and statistical data are
maintained in the Jasper County Clerk of Council Office. A copy of the map delineating
the geographic boundaries of the County Council New Districts and the census
information pertaining to such districts are incorporated by reference as if set forth

verbatim herein. The statistical census data is attached to this ordinance.

ARTICLE III

IMPLEMENTATION

Section 3.01 2022 Elections.

The Election Commission of the County is hereby directed, immediately upon the
Effective Date hereof, to undertake, by and with the South Carolina Election
Commission, all steps necessary for holding elections for members of the Council
according to the regular schedule for the primary elections and the general election on
November ___, 2022, in such of the New Districts as is required in accordance with

Section 4-9-90, South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended.



ARTICLEIV

REPEAL

Section 4.01 Repeal of Inconsistent Provisions.

The existing ordinance previously adopted by the Council establishing the current
districts and any other ordinances of the Council now in effect that are inconsistent with
this Ordinance are hereby repealed as of the Effective Date of this Ordinance.

ARTICLEYV

SEVERABILTY

If any part of this Ordinance is held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid for
any reason, it shall be construed to have been the legislative intent of the County Council
of Jasper County, South Carolina, to pass this Ordinance without such unconstitutional
provision, and the remainder of said Ordinance shall be deemed and held to be valid as
if such portion had not been included. If this Ordinance, or any provision thereof, is held
to be inapplicable to any person, group of persons, property, kind of property,
circumstances or set of circumstances, such holding shall not affect the applicability

thereof to any other persons, property or circumstances.



ARTICLE VI

EFFECTIVE DATE

AND IT IS SO ORDAINED AND ADOPTED this day of

, 2022, by the Jasper County Council in meeting duly assembled,

effective immediately.

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL
By:

Barbara B. Clark , Chairwoman
Attest:

(SEAL)

Wanda Sinimons, Clerk to Council

First Reading: 01.18.2022
Second Reading: 02.07.2022
Public Hearings: 02.07.2022

Adopted:

It is required that the following Exhibits be attached before the second reading:

1. Exhibit A - Map
2. Exhibit B — Statistical Data

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.

David L. Tedder Date






Jasper County: Current Voting Districts

JasperCounty_Voting_Districts
District

m]
>
=3
m4
" Prison




. Jasper County Redistricting
[ RFA Draft (Jan 12, 2022)

‘ ¢ Incumbents
|
|

[ Gument Counci Districts
Jasper_Draft_Blocks

[ | prison
=1
i :
i »

N D




pLsia

833884

|1ddy uoyndog 70z

383
Jo1pe

ooa's £

6669 >
S6T°L [+ 4

996'9 :ucne(ndod 3a3.e)
TZ0Z Jaquiadag "yriq sadser jo Ajuno)

BoneIAA] 0y {rapupnj
fa50

<20 Anemae] "SonsRnS eI

269 V69 L8CIT wOTE SITZTZ g8 6916 LTATL  0W'S  WELZ mmelpuesn|
991 £39C 991 L 9075 e 98¢ T00T OIT 6699 ¥|
ost €961 2827 oz 0TES 0T L4 £ 9ZEg L06T  6569 €
01 et 2997 S0TL ge96 hrd 8112 1962 881 66LL T
16t N £ .- S < L Téee 081 €GF1 BECE  9E9 2089 1
¥3aH A IHM O JINY 1 w M1 IHM HN O [*9) Jo umg (11| 57eqE] Moy
IOTHN VA 218TI0Q” HN VA dSTH dVA VIOL dVA HIO HN § [OQHN  joumg spmedsipy |
joumg HN VA jomng  yommg jomms o wmg jo mmg Jo mmag
Jomng

e SRV

SISAFOIY 5HY) a0f paaouizl Svar 3pnypsUT [uot a0 prelaSpry 1o pasnol 276 Jo negepndod 21 10N

9T 189 RECIE  [F6W WSEIS ZBEYL. %SWEIC  WLE . sae e e
“6LE 91 I s A S Y75 57 907’ v g
RIET T0ST RBE6T €981  WeeeS  [8LT %IPVSL 078 0i€S € wdm
%00'€ 0Ll %WPSST  SIPT  %NSTUF 8997 WETT S0TT  ses ¢ wdw]
I 151 . SY0IL 1A S T 79F ’ 1 sadin]

V. 23T dVA 2 dVA 4R T dVA
hU..—uo m.m.-/- Loy ﬁvdﬂﬂﬂ A I‘Uﬂﬁm :/ & o y ¥ ” s annuu-n.m..mmm
RN 10Q HN
HN HX %

"HN 5% PAVIAIQQY ST OUQY] 10 i 10X, "SUORTUGAP [O)] FHSH PAUGLp 30y, a0vy Aq mopERdod a5y dUnoa
fisT 8T8 wl6TE U6 RE09F 9Tl %6081 oS g mel
S%90E TIZ %8606 9/FE %06 W0T ST OICT 6689 ¥ adea] |
%56¢ ST W8VeE  TTIT  W6LLF  9TEE  %8l8l L€T 6% ¢ Bdm] |
pea) SEVL WEUIF 197 %ITC (891 e6lL  © deni. |

I .

%roz _  REEIC %99 $ESF  %TE6 o9 .
Y azey yorrqg Soeig NTYAY 2INMGAy  JIUFASIE] &) Jruedsip) [rEa §
IMRO loda fa HN HXN g HN

"HIN S° PAPIASIqqP 57 SUMP] 10 FIwISTH 10N . dinsn paUT q uogrradog o dswl




Jasper County Redistricting
.RFA Draft 2 (Deviation 4.92)

Incymbents
= StreatCenterlines
[ statewide2021
E Currenl Council Districts
district
I:I Pnson
.
(52
i -
I




i

»IsIa

§58288°
nddy uonemdog 5zoT

RE3
&

30]

996'G :uone(hdod jaae)
ZT0¢ Aenuer ‘g Yyeiq Jadser o Ayune)

R

O

59 86’9 L9CTT BOLE L-7A i1 sze 69T'6 LIFTE  ow'S Rl [wioL pues

UL zesT €691 8L I 69¢% ST ORI 9%99 7|
<€l €991 0TLT 172 1625 851 T £ree 9TTT 1069 €]
[17A L] 8 F99C =174 4 8C9G CET 6T1IT 1962 L88T 6614 T
ScL cIItL L5 16¥ 9909 €51 LEFL e o 189 8069 T
WM 0¥ IHMT O JINV 1 pied M1 IHM HN O ¥ Jo WIRG 2 S[2qE] MOY |

LJOTHN dVA 18700 HN d¥A dSIH dVA YIOL dYA HLOTHN 8 [OCQTHN  joumg spredsyyy
joumsg HN dvA joumg  joumg joumg  joumg jo umg jo wms [

jo wing
r =] gNvNINON|
I
Fisz L9 RECIE  /T69 %SETS LBETL %SHEL WZE &7 el __
WIPE 91 OF6F T NSTTL €L oore i B
[RSET SEl NVIE HolSTL L Tt 1
008 01 SPSEC 5 WOETC  SOTL S

®IET % 8E 8T i %608 167 ]

AVA R W FIEy AV VAN VA PR Ay
WG NS vy Yl g HN o : jop nordap  qEo]
=0 foa [oa HN
HN HN 8
"HiN St pajetasiqqe 51 ougef 30 0
[os6 828 %I6TE  69T6  XBOOY /28U WeOBL  OWOS W8 m@el ]
[%STE €T P6t  B9EE %EF6T 8107  %U81 91 9589 ¥ sadse]
[Reee T TUeSUwIsTe  WRCL. Web9%,  WCE %441 owrl we9 € e |
BICE (€ WEFBC  GEET  SELTR 1967  %IT9C 88T 66l i sodee] |
%89t 581 %050C ISR %99°99 S09F %986 189 8069 1 dade |
» AN ¥ L ELN§T] BIEAY e LT L wnkilungj (v g TFIFE

LTy




AGENDA ITEM:
XI-B

Ordinance item B



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-29

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE-IN-LIEU OF TAX
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN A COMPANY KNOWN FOR THE TIME BEING AS
“PROJECT MANDOLIN” (THE “COMPANY”) AND JASPER COUNTY, WHEREBY
JASPER COUNTY WILL ENTER INTO A FEE-IN-LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT WITH
THE COMPANY AND PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT BY THE COMPANY OF
CERTAIN FEES-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH AGREEMENT;
PROVIDING FOR THE ALLOCATION OF FEES-IN-LIEU OF TAXES PAYABLE
UNDER THE AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A MULTI-COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Jasper County, South Carolina (the “County™), acting by and through its County
Council (the “County Council”) is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions
of Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “FILOT
Act”), to designate real and tangible personal property as “economic development property” and to
enter into an arrangement which provides for payments-in-lieu of taxes (“FILOT Payments”) for a
project qualifying under the FILOT Act; and

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through the County Council, is further authorized and
empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code of Laws of
South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively, the “the MCIP Act”) to provide for payments-in-
lieu of taxes with respect to property located in a multi-county business or industrial park created
under the MCIP Act and to permit investors to claim special source credits against their FILOT
Payments to reimburse such investors for expenditures for infrastructure serving the County and
improved or unimproved real estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment,
used or to be used in the operation of manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance
the economic development of Jasper County (“Infrastructure Improvements™); and to create, in
conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county park in order to afford certain
enhanced tax credits to such investors and facilitate the grant of special source or infrastructure
improvement credits; and

WHEREAS, “Project Mandolin™ (referred to herein as the “Company”) is considering an
industrial development at a site located in the City of Hardeeville (“City”) in Jasper County by
acquiring and constructing real property and real property improvements (the “Project”) which the
Company estimates will likely consist of a capital investment of at least One Hundred Eighty Four
Millien Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($184,450,000.00).

WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into a Fee Agreement with the Company, as the
Company has expressed its intent to the County to make a capital investment in the County (i.e.,
the Project);

WHEREAS, the Project is located entirely within Jasper County and, with the consent of the
Partner County (as defined herein) and the City of Hardeeville, will be included in and subject to

WBD (US) 54578278v5



the multi-county park and fee-in-lieu of tax arrangements as described herein; and

WHEREAS, the County has made specific proposals, including proposals to offer certain
economic development incentives set forth herein, for the purpose of inducing the Company to
invest its funds to acquire and equip the Project (the “Incentives™); and

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest, for the public benefit and in furtherance of the public
purposes of the FILOT Act and the MCIP Act that the County Council provide approval for
qualifying the Project under the FILOT Act and the entire Project under the MCIP Act for the
Incentives;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council as follows:
Section 1. Evaluation of the Project. The County Council has evaluated the Project on the

following criteria based upon the advice and assistance of the South Carolina Department of
Revenue:

(a) whether the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and
public purposes;

(b) the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment to be made; and
(c) the anticipated costs and benefits to the County.
Section 2. Findings by County Council. Based upon information provided by and
representations of the Company, County Council’s investigation of the Project, including the

criteria described in Section 1 above, and the advice and assistance of the South Carolina
Department of Revenue, as required, County Council hereby find that:

(a) the Project constitutes a “project” as that term is defined in the FILOT Act;

(b) the Project will serve the purposes of the FILOT Act;

(c) the Company anticipates an investment of at least One Hundred Eighty-Four Million Four
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($184,450,000.00) within eight (8) years from the end of
the property tax year in which the Company and the County execute the FILOT Agreement
(as defined herein);

(d) the Project will be located entirely within the County;

(¢) the Project will benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services,
employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally;

(f) the Project will not give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County or any municipality nor a
charge against its general credit or taxing power of the County or any municipality;

(g) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public
purposes;

WBD (US) 54578278v5



(h) the inducement of the location of the Project is of paramount importance; and
(i) the benefits of the Project to the public are greater than the costs to the public.

Section 3. Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Arrangement. Pursuant to the authority of the FILOT Act,
the Project is hereby designated as “economic development property” under the FILOT Act and
there is hereby authorized a fee-in-lieu of taxes arrangement with the Company for a term of thirty
(30) years, which will provide FILOT Payments to be made with respect to the Project based upon
a 6% assessment ratio and a millage rate which shall be fixed for the full term of the agreement at
457.0 mills, and including Special Source Revenue Credits in the amount of 40% of the Project for
each year of the Term (as defined in the FILOT Agreement), subject to reduction at the County’s
discretion based on failure to achieve certain investment thresholds during the investment period,
all as more fully set forth in the Fee Agreement by and between the Company and the County (the
“FILOT Agreement”).

Section 4. Extension of Investment Period. The Company has represented to the County
that it does not anticipate completing the Project within five (5) years of the last day of the property
tax year during which economic development property is first placed in service (the “Investment
Period”). Accordingly, the Company has applied to the County for an extension of time to
complete the Project pursuant to Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act. The County hereby
extends the Investment Period by three (3) additional years; provided however that there is no
extension of the period for meeting the minimum statutory investment requirement as specified in
Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act.

Section 5. Execution of the Fee Agreement. The form, terms and provisions of the FILOT
Agreement presented to this meeting and filed with the Clerk of the County Council be and hereby
are approved, and all of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein
by reference as if such FILOT Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chair
of the County Council and the Clerk of the County Council be and they are hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the FILOT Agreement in the name
and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the FILOT Agreement to be delivered to the
Company. The FILOT Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and
hereby approved, or with any changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of
the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the County Attorney and the officials of the
County executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their
approval of all changes therein from the form of FILOT Agreement now before this meeting,

Section 6. Multi-County Park.

(@) The County, in cooperation with Hampton County (the “Partner County”) and subject to
the consent of the City of Hardeeville, which consent has been provided pursuant to that
certain Intergovernmental Agreement dated as of November 5, 2021 between Jasper
County and the City of Hardeeville, South Carolina (the “2021 IGA™), hereby designates
the site of the Project as a multi-county park (the “Park”™) pursuant to Article VIII, Section
13 of the Constitution of South Carolina, the MCIP Act, and the terms of that certain
Agreement for the Establishment of Multi-County Industrial/Business Park by and between
the County and the Partner County and dated as of even date herewith or the date of the

WBD (US) 54578278v5



Partner County’s approval of said Agreement (the “MCIP Agreement”). In the FILOT
Agreement, the County will agree to use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain
such designation throughout the term of the FILOT Agreement.

(b} Pursuant to the terms of the MCIP Act and the MCIP Agreement, the County hereby
provides that throughout the term of the FILOT Agreement, the annual allocation of the
fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes payable by the Company to the County in accordance with
the terms of the MCIP Agreement, after deducting any amounts distributed to the Partner
County, will be distributed as follows:

a. To the County, for providing the Special Source Revenue Credits, an amount equal
to the annual Special Source Revenue Credits provided in Section 3 of this
Ordinance and in the FILOT Agreement; and

b. After making the allocations under paragraph (a) of this Section, Park Revenues (as
defined in the MCIP Agreement) derived from the Project shall be distributed in
accordance with the MCIP Agreement and allocable to the County as the “Host
County” under the MCIP Agreement in accordance with that certain
Intergovernmental Agreement dated November 5, 2021 between the County and
the City.

Section 7. Miscellaneous.

(@) The Chair and all other appropriate officials of the County are hereby authorized to
execute, deliver and receive any other agreements and documents as may be required by
the County in order to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions authorized
by this Ordinance.

(b} This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State
of South Carolina.

(¢} This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon approval following its third
reading by the County Council.

(d) The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable and if any section,
phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be invalid or unenforceable, that declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of
the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder.

(e) All ordinances, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of the
conflict, hereby repealed.

[Signature Page to Follow]

WBD (US) 54578278v5



ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this __ day of

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

By:

Wanda Simmons
Clerk to County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina

First Reading:
Second Reading:
Public Hearing:
Third Reading:

October 4, 2021
February 7, 2022

WBD (US) 54578278v5

, 2022,

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CARCLINA

By:

Barbara Clark
Chair of County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina



Draft - January 27, 2022

FEE AGREEMENT
by and between
[PROJECT MANDOLIN]
and
JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Dated as of [February 22, 2022]

WBD (US) 34576051v6



Table of Contents

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS AND RECAPITULATION ....c.cooviiieirirsisissesssssmsseeeresesessesseemsnsanns 5
Section 1.01. Statutorily Required Recapitulation .............ccccovrimmrncrseeee e eescesse e snssssns 5
Section 1.02. DefINItIONS ....c.ovcvciiiiiciie it ss e e e are e s e ass et sssa s s esssnene 6
Séction: 1.00: ReTerences 10 AGTRBTIIRII .. rsiererisuisisds st cofasit s somis sidssinnsmvois sonssi wesssaimits s 10

ARTICLE Il REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES..........cccoviiiieriiisrsssnesienreeesesnesenenens 10
Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by COUNtY ...c.o.ccoceviiiiieieiceecerese e s e 10
Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by the Company ..........ccocecoveereeceeieisesisesrisiones 10

ARTICLE HIUNDERTAKINGS OF THE COUNTY i iiinsmsi iisiaiiiitniaiiang 11
Section 3.01  Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments; Rollback Taxes. ........ccocovieervernnnnns 11
Section 3.02  No Warranties bY COUNY. ....o.oceioee e s st sese e e e eesenanaeas 12
SECHON 3037 TEIVRIIANEY ccis s reiss sovminisoiinsnanisinsenvisssniois ey A DA e A et 12
Section' 304  Multi-County Park: STatus saiiiwiisalis sl 13

ARTICLE IV UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COMPANY ..ot eass i 13
Section 4.01, Investment by Company in PrOject.........cocoveinineiiiiiensiesssnes s eseressessssnnns 13
Section 4.02. Reporting and FING .. ..o v st it s i . 13
Section:4:.03: - Modifieation of Project: i it ssnian s s o 14

ARTICLE V PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES ..ot ssse s 15
Section 5.01. Payments in Lieu of Ad Valorem TaXes ......ccoeveviericeciceieice e vsnisesssisseseses 15

ARTICLE VI:PAYMENTS BY-COMPANY i i i mvaiobesn s baivisse 19
Section 0.01; Defavlted PAYMIBOIS i it int ot isi et vistan sty sbumee s esmmemesassmemsr 19

ARTICLE VII CASUALTY AND CONDEMNATION ......covvvciiiniiininnisisinesseeas s eesssssesenas 19
Section 7.01. Adjustments in the Event of Damage and Destruction or Condemnation........... 19

ARTICLE VIII PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS.........ccoooiviiiiiicnreinns 20
Section 8.01. Use of Project for Lawful Activities........cooovomeremeeciriiciece e 20
Section 8.02. IndemnifiCalioN........ociiiiiiiieriierees ettt st s s ereeenanenes 20
Section 8.03. Sponsors and Sponsor AffIHALES...........cc.cieiriiirvieiisie s e eeeeeeeeeeeeseeaeenns 21
Section 8.04. Compliance with GASB 77 .c.coiiviiilivmimimioisiisiisias iasins s it ions 21

ARTICLE IX FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS; CONVEYANCES; ASSIGNMENTS .......... 22
Section 9.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; ASSIZNMENL............cocceceecvieiierieeesenessesronsnens 22
Section 9.02. Relative Rights of County and Financing Entities as Secured Parties ................22

ARTICEE X TERM; TERMENATION: oottt b i it s b e 22



Section 10,02, Termination..... .o ssssrsese s sesss s seessssesssssmssensssssnns 23
ARTICLE XI EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ..............coooiimmimsnssssssisssomsaesremseseens 24
Section F1.01. Evénts of Defuult by COMPANY . ...cumimiiiivmimiinm i, s 24
Section 11.02. Remedies on Event of Default by COMPANY ......ccvveeeieeciieiciescscersesonesienens 24
Section 11.03. Default by County ... e e s ssrss s ssssssesenss 25
Section [1.04, No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver.........coocvcirieerieonsesossensarsessnas 25
Section 11.05. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses ................... 25
ARTICLE XII MISCELLANEOUS ..o ssssssss st e s se s s ss e seasnseneaeassneasens 25
Section 12.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative.........ccouovurmnecnesscsicieseccc s ssnsesnns 25
Nection 12:02. Successors and ASSIBIE i v b G e i i 25
Section 12.03. Administration EXPENSES. .......cceceeeiervesceieceisnssssssissssessssssssssssssss ssssssemerommssssnns 26
Section 12.05. Notices; Demands; REQUESES .........occovviiviiiiriiiiiniiinis e cesesese s sssssssessssssssnens 26
Section 12:06: APPHCEDIE AW . ..sumimsatim s i e s 27
Section F2.07: Entire Undesstaniling . oo i s s i s 2l
Section 12.08. SeVerability ... s re s s s e sss e st e sssensenns 27
Section 12.09. Headings and Table of Contents; References . ....o.ocvvvervrirvevoerisersssrerssesressssns 27
Section: 1210 MultpR COUnEIPAFTS ... o i sisim i A s 86 s S e A 23
Section. T2. 1 1 Amendme il s e R S s s, B e 27
SECHON 12,12, WAV ...t et se s ss s s s sssans s sress et arneanesnas 27
BECHON B2, FOree WAFEUPE .« csmmepyisis st mintassspasssms e 8 s T s s s 27



FEE AGREEMENT

This FEE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is dated as of [February 22, 2022}, by and
between [PROJECT MANDOLIN], a [ ] (the “Company™), and Jasper County,
South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South
Carolina (the “County™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the “Council™), is
authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the
“Act”) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the date hereof (the
“Code™) and Sections 4-1-170, 4-1-172, and 4-1-175 of the Code and Article VIII, Section 13(D)
of the South Carolina Constitution (the “Multi-County Park Act™): (7) to enter into agreements
with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, and improve certain industrial and
commercial properties through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina
will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to
locate and remain in the State of South Carolina and thus utilize and employ the workforce,
agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; (/i) to covenant with such investors to
accept certain payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to the project (a “FILOT™); (iii)
to maintain, create or expand, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county
industrial park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors; and (iv)
permit investors to claim special source credits against FILOT payments to reimburse such
investors for expenditures for infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used or to be used in the
operation of manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic
development of the County;

WHEREAS, the Company proposes to purchase and develop the Project (as defined
herein) within the County;

WHEREAS, the Company anticipates that the Project will result in an investment of One
Hundred Eighty-Four Million Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($184,450,000.00) in the
County;

WHEREAS, as a result of the Company locating certain operations in the County, the
Company requested that the County complete the FILOT arrangement by entering into this
Agreement with the Company pursuant to the Act, and the Company elects to enter into such
FILOT arrangement with the County in an effort to encompass the terms surrounding the Project
and allowing the Company to make FILOT Payments pursuant to the Act;

WHEREAS, for the Project, the parties have also determined that the Company is a
Sponsor, and that the Project constitutes Economic Development Property, each within the
meaning of the Act; and



WHEREAS, for the purposes set forth above, the County has determined that it is in the
best interests of the County to enter into this Agreement with the Company, subject to the terms
and conditions herein set forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements
hereinafter contained, and the sum of $1.00 in hand, duly paid by the Company to the County,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the Company
agree as follows:

ARTICLEI

DEFINITIONS AND RECAPITULATION

Section 1.01. Statutorily Required Recapitulation.

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-55(B) of the Act, the County and the Company
agree to waive the recapitulation requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Act.
Subsection (b) of this section is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a
part of this Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the Act.

(b) Summary of Agreement:

1. Legal name of each initial party to this Agreement:

[PROJECT MANDOLIN]
Jasper County, South Carolina

2. County, street address, parcel number or other location identifier of the
Project and property to be subject to this Agreement:

See Exhibit A

3. Minimum investment agreed upon: $184,450,000.00

4, Length and term of this Agreement: thirty (30) years for each annual
increment of investment in the Project during the Investment Period

5. Investment Period: eight (8) years

6. Assessment ratio applicable for each year of this Agreement: 6%

7. Millage rate applicable for each year of this Agreement: 457.0 mills

8. Schedule showing the amount of the fee and its calculation for each year
of this Agreement: Waived by the County and the Company.

9. Schedule showing the amount to be distributed annually to each of the
affected taxing entities: Waived by the County and the Company.

5



10. Statements

(a) The Project is to be located in a multi-county industrial or business
park;

(b) Disposal of property subject to payments-in-lieu-of-taxes is
allowed;

(c) Special Source Revenue Credits will be provided in an amount of
forty percent (40%) of FILOT payments for each year of the Term.

(c) Payment will not be modified using a net present value calculation;
and

(d)  Replacement property provisions will apply.

11.  Any other feature or aspect of this Agreement which may affect the
calculation of items (8) and (9) of this summary.
None.

12. Description of the effect upon the schedules required by items (8) and (9)
of this summary of any feature covered by items (10) and (11) not
reflected in the schedules for items (8) and (9): Waived by the County and
the Company.

13. Which party or parties to this Agreement are responsible for updating any
information contained in this summary: The Company.

Section 1.02. Definitions. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere
defined in this Agreement, the following words and terms as used herein and in the preambles
hereto shall have the following meanings, unless the context or use indicates another or different
meaning or intent.

“Act” or “Simplified FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code, as
amended through the date hereof.

“Administration Expense” shall mean the reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket
expenses, including attorneys’ fees, incurred by the County with respect to: (i) the preparation,
review, approval and execution of this Agreement; (ii) the preparation, review, approval and
execution of other documents related to this Agreement and any multi-county park documents;
and (iif) the fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement and any multi-county park
documents, and in the implementation and administration of the terms and provisions of the
documents after the date of execution thereof.

“dffiliate” shall mean any Person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or
under common control with such other Person. For purposes of this definition, “control” means
the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of the Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by
contract, or otherwise.



“Agreement” shall mean this Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Agreement by and among the County
and the Company, as originally executed and from time to time supplemented or amended as
permitted herein, and dated as of [February 22, 2022].

“Co-Investor” shall mean the Company, any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate within
the meaning of Sections 12-44-30(19) and (20) of the Act, any Affiliate of the Company or of
any such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, any tenant leasing all or a portion of the Project
from the Company or any other existing Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, any developer in a build-
to-suit arrangement or other leasing arrangement with respect to the Project, any lessor of
equipment or other property comprising a part of the Project, and any financing entity or other
third party investing in, providing funds for or otherwise making investment in real or personal
property in connection with the Project. The Company shall notify the County in writing of the
identity of any other Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate or other Co-Investor and shall, to the extent the
Company and any such other Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate, or other Co-Investor intend to extend
the benefits of the FILOT to property owned by any such Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate, or other
Co-Investor pursuant to Section 6.02 hereof, comply with any additional notice requirements, or
other applicable provisions, of the Act. As of the original execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the Company is the only Co-Investor.

“Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the
date hereof, unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the
Project or any portion thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day

of the property tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the
Company enter into this Agreement.

“Company” shall mean [PROJECT MANDOLIN], a | 1, and its successors
and assigns.

“Confidential Information” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.02(c) hereof.

“County” shall mean Jasper County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a
political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, and its successors and assigns.

“County Council” shall mean the governing body of the County and its successors.

“Department of Revenue” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue.

“Economic Development Property” shall mean each item of real and tangible personal
property comprising the Project, except Non-Qualifying Property, if any, within the meaning of
that term as defined and used in Sections 12-44-30(6) and 12-44-40(C) of the Code.

“Equipment” shall mean all machinery, equipment, furnishings, and other personal
property acquired by the Company and installed as part of the Project during the Investment

Period in accordance with this Agreement.

“Event of Default” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11.01 hereof.
7



“Existing Property” shall mean property proscribed from becoming Economic
Development Property pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the Code, including, without limitation,
property which has been subject to ad valorem taxes in the State prior to the execution and
delivery of this Agreement and property included in the Project as part of the repair, alteration, or
modification of such previously taxed property; provided, however, that Existing Property shall
not include: (/) property acquired or constructed by the Company during the Investment Period
which has not been placed in service in this State prior to the Investment Period notwithstanding
that ad valorem taxes have heretofore been paid with respect to such property; (ii) modifications
which constitute an expansion of Existing Property; or (iii) property described in Section 12-44-
110 of the Code to the extent that the Company and any Co-Investors invest at least an additional
Forty-Five Million Dollars ($45,000,000.00) in the Project.

“FILOT” shall mean the fee-in-lieu of taxes, which the Company are obligated to pay to
the County pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof.

“FILOT Payments™ shall mean the payments to be made by the Company or any Co-
Investor with respect to its respective portion of the Project, whether made as Negotiated FILOT
Payments pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof or as FILOT payments made pursuant to the Multi-
County Park Act.

“Investment Commitment” shall mean the agreement of the Company and any other Co-
Investors to make investments with respect to the Project as set forth in Sections 2.02(d) and 4.01
of this Agreement.

“Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day that Economic
Development Property is purchased or acquired and ending on the date that is eight (8) years
from the Commencement Date (which Investment Period represents a five-year investment
period, plus an additional three (3) years that the County has hereby granted pursuant to the Act).

“Land” shall mean the real estate upon which the Project is to be located, as described in
Exhibit A attached hereto. Additional real estate may be included as part of Exhibit A as
provided in Section 4,03(i), and the Company shall deliver to the County an updated Exhibit A to
reflect such addition.

“Multi-County Park” shall mean the multi-county industrial/business park established
pursuant to that certain Agreement for the Establishment of Multi-County Industrial/Business
Park, by and between the County and Hampton County, South Carolina (as amended, modified,
supplemented or replaced from time to time).

“Multi-County Park Act” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals hereto.
“Negotiated FILOT” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.01(b)(ii) hereof.

“Negotiated FILOT Payment” shall mean the FILOT due pursuant to Section 5.01(b)
hereof with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of Economic Development Property.



“Non-Qualifying Property” shall mean that portion of the Project, if any, consisting of: ()
property as to which the Company incurred expenditures prior to the Investment Period or,
except as to Replacement Property, after the end of the Investment Period; (i) Existing Property;
and (iif) any Released Property or other property which fails or ceases to qualify for Negotiated
FILOT Payments, including without limitation property as to which the Company have
terminated the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 4.03(a)(iii) hereof.

“Person” shall mean and include any individual, association, unincorporated
organization, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or government or
agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Project” shall mean, collectively herein, the Land and buildings and other improvements
on the Land to the extent placed thereon by or on behalf of the Company or any Co-Investor,
including water, sewer treatment and disposal facilities, and other machinery, apparatus,
equipment, office facilities, and furnishings which are necessary, suitable, or useful, including
the Equipment, and any Replacement Property.

“Project Millage Rate” shall mean a millage rate of 457.0 mills.

“Property Tax Year” shall mean the annual period which is equal to the fiscal year of the
Company, or any other Co-Investor, as the case may be.

“Released Property” shall mean any portion of the Project removed, scrapped, traded in,
sold, or otherwise disposed of pursuant to Section 4.03 hereof, any portion of the Project stolen,
damaged, destroyed, or taken by condemnation or eminent domain proceedings as described in
Article VII hereof, and any infrastructure which the Company dedicates to the public use (within
the meaning of that phrase as used in Section 12-6-3420(C) of the Code).

“Replacement Property” shall mean all property installed in or on the Land in
substitution of, or as replacement for, any portion of the Project, but only to the extent that such
property may be included in the calculation of the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01(c)
hereof and Section 12-44-60 of the Code.

“Special Source Revenue Credits” shall mean the special source credits provided
pursuant to Section 5.01(d) hereof.

“Sponsor” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12-44-30(19) of the Code. As of
the date of this Agreement, the Company is the only Sponsor.

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12-44-30(20) of the Code.
“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina.
*Term” shall mean the term of this Agreement, as set forth in Section 10.01 hereof.

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the Code, as
amended through the date hereof.



Section 1.03. References to Agreement. The words “hereof’, “herein”,
“hereunder”, and other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole.

ARTICLEII
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by County. The County makes the

following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein
contained:

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of
the State of South Carolina and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act
to enter into the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its
obligations hereunder.

(b) The County, based on representations of the Company, has determined
that the Project will serve the purposes of the Act, and has made all other findings of fact
required by the Act in order to designate the Project as Economic Development Property.

(c) By proper action of the County Council, the County has duly authorized
the execution and delivery of this Agreement and any and all actions necessary and
appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(d)  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the
County.

(e}  The County agrees to use its commercially reasonable efforts to continue
to cause the Land to be located within the Multi-County Park, and the County will take
all reasonable acts to ensure that the Project will continuously be included within the
boundaries of the Multi-County Park or another multi-county park during the Term of
this Agreement in order that the maximum tax benefits afforded by the laws of the State
for projects in the County located within multi-county industrial parks will be available to
the Company.

() No actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the
undersigned representatives of the County are pending or threatened against or affecting
the County in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or
tribunal, which could materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement or which could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of
this Agreement.

Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by the Company. The Company
makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part

herein contained:

10



(a) The Company is a [ ], validly existing and in good standing
under the laws of [ | and authorized to do business in the State; has all requisite
power to enter into this Agreement; and by proper action has been duly authorized to
execute and deliver this Agreement,

(b) The agreements with the County with respect to the FILOT have been
instrumental in inducing the Company to locate the Project within the County and the
State.

() Except as otherwise disclosed to the County, no actions, suits,
proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the undersigned representatives of the
Company are pending or threatened against or affecting the Company in any court or
before any governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, which could
materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or which
could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement.

(d) For the Project, the Company commits to an investment, collectively with
any Co-Investors, of at least One Hundred Eighty-Four Million Four Hundred Fifty
Thousand Dollars ($184,450,000.00) (the “Project Commitment™) in Economic
Development Property by the end of the eight-year Investment Period. The investment
amount shall not include any amount paid by the Company for real estate improvements
on the Land placed in service as of the date of this Agreement. Investments made by the
Company and any Co-Investors in Economic Development Property shall be included in
the determination whether the Company has fulfilled its commitment made in this item to
invest in the Project.

(¢)  The income tax year of the Company, and accordingly the Property Tax
Year, for federal income tax purposes is a 52/53 week fiscal year ending [December 31].

§9) No event has occurred and no condition currently exists with respect to the
Company, which would constitute a default or an Event of Default as defined herein.

(g) This Agreement is a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the Company
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as such terms may
be limited by laws affecting creditors’ rights generally.

ARTICLE III
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COUNTY

Section 3.01 Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments; Rollback Taxes.

(a) The County hereby agrees to accept FILOT Payments made by the
Company and any Co-Investor in accordance with Section 5.01 hereof in lieu of ad
valorem taxes with respect to the Project until this Agreement expires or is sooner
terminated.

11



(b) The County hereby acknowledges and agrees that, pursuant to Section 12-
43-220(d)(6) of the Act, no Economic Development Property shall be subject to rollback
taxes. The County further covenants, to the extent allowed by law, that any portion of the
Land that has not been developed by the Company (or by any Co-Investors) shall
continue to be assessed using the agricultural assessment ratio until such Land is
developed, so long as such property lawfully qualifies for such assessment ratio.

Section 3.02 No Warranties by County. The Company acknowledges that the
County has made no warranties or representations, either express or implied, as to the condition
or state of the Project or as to the design or capabilities of the Project or that it will be suitable
for the Company’s purposes or needs. No representation of the County is hereby made with
regard to compliance by the Project or any Person with laws regulating: (/) the construction or
acquisition of the Project; (/i) environmental matters pertaining to the Project; (iii) the offer or
sale of any securities; or (iv) the marketability of title to any property.

Section 3.03 Invalidity. The parties acknowledge that the intent of this
Agreement is to afford the Company and any Co-Investors the benefits of the Negotiated FILOT
Payments in consideration of the Company’s decision to locate the Project within the County and
that this Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the enactment of the Simplified
FILOT Act. In the event that, for any reason, the Act and/or the Negotiated FILOT or any
portion thereof is, by a court of competent jurisdiction following allowable appeals, declared
invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, or the portion of the Project consisting of Economic
Development Property is deemed not to be eligible for a Negotiated FILOT pursuant to the Act
in whole or in part, the Company and the County express their intentions that such payments be
reformed so as to afford the Company or any Co-Investors benefits commensurate with those
intended under this Agreement as then permitted by law, including without limitation any
benefits afforded under the Code, to the extent allowed by law. Absent the legal authorization to
effect such reformation, the Company and the County agree that there shall be due hereunder,
with respect to the portion of the Economic Development Property affected by such
circumstances, ad valorem taxes and that, to the extent permitted by law, the Company and any
Co-Investors shall be entitled: (/) to enjoy the five-year exemption from ad valorem taxes (or
fees in lieu of taxes) provided by Article X, Section 3 of the Constitution of the State, and any
other exemption allowed by law; (i7) to enjoy all allowable depreciation; and (iii) to receive other
tax credits which would be due if the Company or any Co-Investor were obligated to pay ad
valorem taxes hereunder. To the extent that under such circumstances the Negotiated FILOT
Payments hereunder are required by law to be subject to retroactive adjustment, then there shall
be due and payable by the Company or any Co-Investor to the County with respect to the portion
of the Economic Development Property in question an amount equal to the difference between
the Negotiated FILOT Payments theretofore actually paid and the amount which would have
been paid as ad valorem taxes, together with, but only if required by law, interest on such
deficiency as provided in Section 12-54-25(D) of the Code. The Company agrees that if this
Agreement is reformed as provided in this Section or if retroactive adjustments are made, then
under no circumstances shall the County be required to refund or pay any monies to the
Company or any Co-Investor.

12



In addition to and notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, the County shall not be
obligated to perform any of its obligations or promises under this Section 3.03 unless the
Company has otherwise complied with or provides satisfactory evidence to the County that it
intends to comply with its obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement,

Section 3.04 Multi-County Park Status. The County agrees to use its
commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the Land in the Multi-County Park until the date this
Agreement expires or is terminated. If it becomes necessary to remove the Land from the Multi-
County Park prior to the expiration or termination of this Agreement, the County agrees to use its
commercially reasonable efforts to place the Land in another multi-county park established
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act and to maintain the multi-county park designation until
the date this Agreement is terminated. The parties acknowledge and agree that the County’s
agreement to place and maintain the Land in a multi-county park may be subject to the exercise
of discretion by a governmental entity other than the County and the exercise of that discretion is
not controlled by the County.

ARTICLE IV

UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COMPANY

Section 4.01. Investment by Company in Project. For the Project, the Company
agrees to invest, collectively with any Co-Investors, at least One Hundred Eighty-Four Million
Four Hundred Fifty Thousand ($184,450,000.00) in Economic Development Property by the end
of the Investment Period. Investments made by the Company and any Co-Investors in Economic
Development Property shall be included in any determination whether the Company has fulfilled
its commitments made in this Section.

Section 4.02. Reporting and Filing.

(a) The Company agrees to provide a copy of Form PT-443 filed with the
Department of Revenue to the County Auditor, the County Economic Development
Director, the County Attorney, the County Administrator and the County Assessor of the
County and the County Auditor and the County Assessor of Hampton County, not later
than thirty (30) days after execution and delivery of this Agreement. Each year during
the Term of this Agreement, the Company shall deliver to the County Auditor, the
County Economic Development Director, the County Attorney, the County Assessor, the
County Administrator and the County Treasurer, a copy of their most recent annual
filings made with the Department of Revenue with respect to the Project, not later than
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department of Revenue. The Company
acknowledges that the terms of the Act provide that to the extent requested, the Jasper
County Auditor shall make such forms and returns available to the County Auditor of
Hampton County. The Company agrees to provide the County with written notice of any
failure to comply with the reporting requirements set forth in this Section.

(b)  The Company agrees to maintain such books and records with respect to
the Project as will permit the identification of those portions of the Project placed in

13



service in each Property Tax Year during the Investment Period, the amount of
investment with respect thereto and its computations of all FILOT Payments made
hereunder and will comply with all reporting requirements of the State and the County
applicable to property subject to FILOT Payments under the Act, including the reports
described in paragraph (a) (collectively, “Filings”).

(c) The County acknowledges and understands that the Company may have
and maintain at the Project certain confidential and proprietary information, including,
but not limited to, trade secrets, financial, sales or other information concerning the
Company’s operations and processes (“Confidential Information™) and that any
disclosure of the Confidential Information could result in substantial harm to the
Company and could have a significant detrimental impact on the Company’s employees
and also upon the County. The Company acknowledges that the County is subject to the
provisions of the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act. The County acknowledges
that information the Company may hereafter provide to the County and which is clearly
identified as Confidential Information may be deemed by the Company to be confidential
and proprietary. To the extent that the Company clearly identifies information as
Confidential Information, the County agrees to maintain the confidentiality of such
Confidential Information and will, to the extent permitted by law (including, specifically,
the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act), decline to honor any request for release
of the Confidential Information so designated to persons other than the Company and its
designated officers and representatives. In the event that the County is required by law to
disclose any Confidential Information obtained from the Company to any third party, the
County agrees to provide the Company with prompt advance notice of such requirement
before making such disclosure. In the event an action at law or equity is brought against
the County to require the disclosure of any Confidential Information that the Company
identified as Confidential Information, the County reserves the right to include the
Company in such action, and the Company hereby agrees to bear the reasonable costs
associated with defending the County in such action, including payment of any judgment
against the County for attorneys’ fees or other liabilities related to such action.

Section 4.03. Modification of Project. As long as no Event of Default exists
hereunder, the Company and any Co-Investor shall have the right at any time and from time to
time during the Term hereof to undertake any of the following:

(1) The Company and each other Co-Investor may, at its own expense,
add to the Project Land or any real and personal property as the Company or each
other Co-Investor in its discretion deems useful or desirable.

(i1) In any instance where the Company or any other Co-Investor, in its
discretion, determines that any items included in the Project have become
inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, undesirable, or unnecessary for
operations at the Project, the Company or such other Co-Investor may remove such
items or portions from the Project and sell, trade in, exchange, or otherwise
dispose of them (as a whole or in part) without the consent of the County; as such
may be permitted under the Simplified FILOT Act.

14



(ii1) The Company and any other Co-Investor may, at any time in its
discretion by written notice to the County, remove any real or personal property
from the Negotiated FILOT (as defined in Section 5.01) set forth in this
Agreement, and thereafter such property will be considered Non-Qualifying
Property and will be subject to FILOT Payments as set forth in Section 5.01(b)(i)
hereof.

ARTICLE V

PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES

Section 5.01. Payments in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes.

(a) In accordance with the Act, the parties hereby agree that, during the Term
of the Agreement, the Company and any Co-Investors shall pay annually, with respect to
the Project, a FILOT in the amount calculated as set forth in this Section, to be collected
and enforced in accordance with Section 12-44-90 of the Act.

(b)  The FILOT Payment due with respect to each Property Tax Year shall
equal:

(i) With respect to any portion of the Project consisting of Non-
Qualifying Property, if any, as long as such property is located in the Multi-County
Park, a payment equal to the ad valorem taxes that would otherwise be due on such
Non-Qualifying Property if it were taxable giving effect to all credits, exemptions,
rebates and abatement that would be available if such undeveloped land or Non-
Qualifying Property were taxable; and

(ii) With respect to those portions of the Project consisting of
Economic Development Property, for each of the thirty (30) consecutive years
following the year in which such portion of the Project is placed in service, a
payment calculated each year as set forth in paragraphs (c) and (d) of this Section
5.01 (a “Negotiated FILOT™).

(c) The Negotiated FILOT Payments shall be calculated with respect to each
Property Tax Year based on: (i) the fair market value (determined in accordance with
Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(c) of the Code) for (A) any real property component of the
Economic Development Property constructed or purchased in an arm’s length transaction
determined by Department of Revenue using the original income tax basis for South
Carolina income tax purposes without regard to depreciation, otherwise the real property
must be reported at the fair market value for ad valorem property taxes as determined by
appraisal, with the fair market value estimate established for the first year of the
Negotiated FILOT Payments with respect to such property remaining the fair market
value of such real property for the entire Term hereof, and (B) the personal property
component of the Economic Development Property determined by Department of
Revenue using the original tax basis for South Carolina income tax purposes less
depreciation allowable for property tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-

15



S0(A)(1)(c) of the Code); (ii) a fixed millage rate equal to the Project Millage Rate, for
the entire Term of this Agreement; and (iii) an assessment ratio of 6%. All such
calculations shall take into account all deductions for depreciation or diminution in value
allowed by the Code or by the tax laws generally, as well as tax exemptions which would
have been applicable if such property were subject to ad valorem taxes, except the
exemption allowed pursuant to Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State
of South Carolina and the exemptions allowed pursuant to Sections 12-37-220(B)(32)
and (34) of the Code.

(d)  Special Source Revenue Credits shall be provided in the amount of forty
percent (40%) of each annual FILOT Payment, for each year of the Term. Such Special
Source Revenue Credits shall be applied automatically and reflected on each year’s
property tax bill provided to the Company.

(e) The FILOT payments are to be recalculated:

(i) to reduce such payments in the event the Company or any Co-
Investor disposes of any part of the Project within the meaning of Section 12-44-
50(B) of the Code and as provided in Section 4.03 hereof, by the amount
applicable to the Released Property;

(ii) to increase such payments, based on the methodology set forth in
Section 5.01(c) hereof, in the event the Company or any Co-Investor adds property
(other than Replacement Property) to the Project; or

(iii) to adjust such payments if the Company or any Co-Investor elects
to convert any portion of the Project from the Negotiated FILOT to the FILOT
required by Section 5.01(b)(i) above, as permitted by Section 4.03(a)(iii).

() To the extent permitted by law, because the FILOT Payments agreed to
herein are intended to be paid by the Company or any Co-Investor to the County in lieu
of taxes, it is agreed that said FILOT Payments shall not, as to any year, be in any amount
greater than what would otherwise be payable by the Company or such Co-Investor to the
County in property taxes if the Company or such Co-Investor had not entered into a fee-
in-lieu of taxes arrangement with the County (except it is not intended that said FILOT
Payments would necessarily be less than such property taxes to the extent that the
constitutional abatement of property taxes would otherwise apply).

(2) Upon the Company’s or any Co-Investor’s installation of any
Replacement Property for any portion of the Project removed under Section 4.03 hereof
and sold, scrapped, or disposed of by the Company or such Co-Investor, such
Replacement Property shall become subject to Negotiated FILOT Payments to the fullest
extent allowed by law, subject to the following rules:

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as
the Economic Development Property it is replacing. Replacement Property is
deemed to replace the oldest property subject to the FILOT, whether real or

16



personal, which is disposed of in the same Property Tax Year as the Replacement
Property is placed in service. Replacement Property qualifies for Negotiated
FILOT Payments up to the original income tax basis of the Economic
Development Property which it is replacing. More than one piece of property can
replace a single piece of property. To the extent that the income tax basis of the
Replacement Property exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic
Development Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject to
payments equal to the ad valorem taxes which would have been paid on such
property but for this Agreement. Replacement property is entitled to the FILOT
payment for the period of time remaining on the thirty-year FILOT period for the
property which it is replacing.

(i1) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the Negotiated
FILOT payment shall be recorded using its income tax basis, and the Negotiated
FILOT Payment shall be calculated using the millage rate and assessment ratio
provided on the original property subject to FILOT payment.

(h)  In the event that the Act or the FILOT or any portion thereof, are declared,
by a court of competent jurisdiction following allowable appeals, invalid or
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the Company and the County express
their intentions that such payments be reformed so as to afford the Company the
maximum benefit then permitted by law, including, without limitation, the benefits
afforded under Section 12-44-50 of the Code and, specifically, that the Company may, at
the Company’s expense, exercise the rights granted by Section 12-44-160 of the Code
upon terms and conditions (including evidence acceptable to the County that the Project
is free from environmental contamination and mutually agreeable environmental
indemnifications and warranties by the Company) acceptable to the County and the
Company. If the Project is deemed not to be eligible for a Negotiated FILOT pursuant to
the Act in whole or in part, the Company and the County agree that the Company shall
pay an alternate fee-in-lieu of tax calculated in the manner set forth in Section 5.01(b)(i)
hereof. In such event, the Company shall be entitled, to the extent permitted by law: (i)
to enjoy the five-year exemption from ad valorem taxes (or fees in lieu of taxes) provided
by Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, and any
other exemption allowed by law; and (ii} to enjoy all allowable depreciation. The
Company agrees that if the FILOT Payments or this Agreement is reformed pursuant to
this subsection (h), that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or
pay any monies to the Company.

(1) For the Project, this Agreement is automatically terminated in the event
that the investment in the Project in land, buildings, and personal property, including
machinery and equipment, by the Company does not exceed Two Million Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) by the end of the Investment Period. If terminated
pursuant to this subsection (i), the Negotiated FILOT Payments shall revert retroactively
to payments equivalent to what the ad valorem taxes would have been with respect to the
property absent this Agreement. At the time of termination, the Company shall pay to the
County an additional fee equal to the difference between the total amount of property

17



taxes that would have been paid by the Company had the project been taxable, taking into
account exemptions from property taxes that would have been available to the Company,
and the total amount of fee payments actually made by the Company. This additional
amount is subject to interest as provided in Section 12-54-25. The Company agrees, if
the Negotiated FILOT Payments revert to payments equivalent to what the ad valorem
taxes would be pursuant to this subsection (i), that under no circumstance shall the
County be required to refund or pay any monies to the Company,

)] In the event that the Company fails to meet and maintain the Project
Commitment by and through the end of the Investment Period as provided herein
(without regard to any subsequent extensions thereof), the Company shall be obligated to
repay a prorated portion of the Special Source Revenue Credits provided under Section
5.01(d) hereof theretofore received by the Company with respect to the qualifying
property, and the amount of Special Source Revenue Credits provided to the Company
thereafter shall be so reduced with such prorated portion to be calculated by determining
the achievement percentage of the Project Commitment as of the last day of the
Investment Period.

(k) For example, and by way of example only, if the Company invested
$156,782,500 as of the last day of the Investment Period, the Company would have met
85% of the Project Commitment and would be obligated to repay 15% of the Special
Source Revenue Credits provided under Section 5.01(d) hereof, and the amount of
Special Source Revenue Credits provided to the Company thereafter would be reduced by
15%. Unless otherwise provided by the Act, any amounts due to the County under this
Section 5.01 by virtue of the application of Sections 5.01(i) hereof shall be paid within
ninety (90) days, following written notice thereof from the County to the Company or
Co-Investor, as applicable,

1y The Company agrees to make FILOT Payments with respect to the
Economic Development Property that it owns for each Property Tax Year during the term
hereof beginning with the Property Tax Year following the year the applicable Economic
Development Property is first placed in service. The FILOT Payments shall be made to
the Jasper County Treasurer on the due dates which would otherwise be applicable for ad
valorem property taxes for the Economic Development Property, with the first payment
being due on the first date following the delivery of this Agreement when, but for this
Agreement, such taxes would have been paid with respect to the Economic Development
Property.

(m) To the extent required by Section 4-29-68(A)(2)(ii) of the Code, if the
Company claims Special Source Revenue Credits as reimbursement for investment in
personal property, including machinery and equipment, if such property is removed from
the Project during the term of this Agreement, the amount of the FILOT Payments due
from the Company on such personal property for the year in which the personal property
was removed from the Project also shall be due for the two (2) years following such
removal.

18



(n)  The Company agrees to provide or cause to be provided all funding for the
costs of acquisition, construction, and installation of Infrastructure Improvements (as
defined in the Act) for which reimbursement is being provided by the Special Source
Revenue Credits. In accordance with the Act, such Special Source Revenue Credits shall
not, in the aggregate, exceed the aggregate cost of the Infrastructure Improvements
funded from time to time by the Company.

(0)  The County and the Company acknowledge and agree that any obligation
which the County may incur for the payment of money as a result of the transactions
described in the herein, including providing the Special Source Revenue Credits, shall
never constitute an indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State
constitutional provision or statutory limitation and shall never create a pecuniary liability
of the County or a charge upon its general credit or against its taxing powers but shall be
payable solely out of the funds received by it under this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI

PAYMENTS BY COMPANY

Section 6.01. Defaulted Payments. In the event the Company should fail to make
any of the payments required under this Agreement, the item or installment so in default shall
continue as an obligation of the Company until the amount in default shall have been fully paid.
The Company agrees that the collection and enforcement of the defaulted payment shall be as
provided in Section 12-44-90 of the Code. The Company expressly acknowledges that in the
event of its failure to make the required FILOT Payments when due, that the County is only
required to give notice thereof in accordance with the Section 12-44-90 of the Code, and that no
further notice is required hereunder in order to enforce the remedies set forth in this Section 6.01,
including any notices of default set forth in Article XI hereof. The County’s right to receive
FILOT Payments shall have a first priority lien status pursuant to Section 12-44-90 of the Code
and Chapters 4 and 54 of Title 12 of Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.

ARTICLE VII

CASUALTY AND CONDEMNATION

Section 7.01. Adjustments in the Event of Damage and Destruction or
Condemnation. In the event that the Project or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed, lost
or stolen, or the subject of condemnation proceedings, the Company, in its sole discretion, may
determine whether or not to repair or replace the same. The parties hereto agree that if the
Company decides not to repair or replace all or any portion of the Project pursuant to this
Section, the FILOT required pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof shall be abated in the same manner
and in the same proportion as if ad valorem taxes were payable with respect to the Project.

19



ARTICLE VIII

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

Section 8.01. Use of Project for Lawful Activities. During the Term of this
Agreement, the Company shall use the Project for any lawful purpose that is authorized pursuant
to the Act.

Section 8.02. Indemnification. The Company releases the County, including the
members of the governing body of the County, and the employees, officers, attorneys and agents
of the County (herein collectively referred to as the “Indemnified Parties™) from, agrees that the
Indemnified Parties shall not be liable for, and agrees to hold the Indemnified Parties harmless
against, any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any person that may be
occasioned by any cause whatsoever pertaining to the Company’s performance of its obligations
pursuant to this Agreement, except for that occasioned by grossly negligent or intentional acts of
an Indemnified Party, or by a breach of this Agreement by the County, The Company further
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Indemnified Parties against and from any and all costs,
liabilities, expenses, and claims arising from any breach or default on the part of the Company in
the performance of any covenant or agreement on the part of the Company to be performed
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or arising from any act or negligence of, or negligent
failure to act where there is a duty to do so, by the Company, and from and against all cost,
liability, and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim or action or proceeding
brought thereon.

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the County
contained herein shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and
obligations of the County and not of any member of the County Council or any officer, agent,
attorney, servant, or employee of the County in his or her individual capacity, and, absent bad
faith, no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder or the performance of
any of the covenants and agreements of the County herein contained or for any claims based
thereon against any member of the governing body of the County or any officer, attorney, agent,
servant, or employee of the County.

Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the Indemnified Parties hereto that none
of them shall incur any pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Agreement, any related
agreements or the undertakings required of the County hereunder by reason of the performance
of any act requested of the County by the Company, including all claims, liabilities, or losses
arising in connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing,
nevertheless, if any Indemnified Party shall incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event
the Company shall indemnify and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any
Person, firm, or corporation or other legal entity arising out of the same and all costs and
expenses incurred in connection with any such claim or in connection with any action or
proceeding brought thereon, provided, however, that nothing herein shall absolve the
Indemnified Parties from, or entitle the Indemnified Parties to indemnification from, any
obligation such Indemnified Party has specifically agreed to undertake (including, without
limitation, the obligation to place and maintain the Land within a multi-county park). If any
action, suit, or proceeding is brought against any Indemnified Party to which such Indemnified

20



Party is entitled to indemnification, such Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the Company,
and the Company shall have the sole right and duty to assume, and shall assume, the defense
thereof, at its expense, with full power to litigate, compromise, or settle the same in its sole
discretion; provided the Company shall obtain the prior written consent of the County to settle
any such claim unless such claim is for monetary damages for which the Company has the ability
to, and do, pay. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Indemnified Party is the County, in the
event the County reasonably believes there are defenses available to it that are not being pursued
or that the counsel engaged by the Company reasonably determines that a conflict of interest
exists between the County and the Company, the County may, in its sole discretion, hire
independent counsel to pursue its own defense, and the Company shall be liable for the
reasonable cost of such counsel.

The indemnity specified in this Section shall be in addition to any heretofore extended by
the Company to any Indemnified Party and shall survive the termination of this Agreement with
respect to liability arising out of any event or act occurring prior to such termination.

Section 8.03. Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates. The Company may designate,
from time to time, other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions of Sections
12-44-30(19) or (20), respectively, and Section 12-44-130 of the Simplified FILOT Act, which
Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates shall be Persons who join with the Company and other Co-
[nvestors and make investments with respect to the Project, or who participate in the financing of
such investments, who agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement and who
shall be Affiliates of Company or other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates, any tenant leasing all or
a portion of the Project from the Company or any other existing Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or
other Persons described in Section 9.01 hereof. All other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates who
otherwise meet the requirements of Section 12-44-30 (19) or (20) and Section 12-44-130 of the
Simplified FILOT Act are subject to approval in accordance with Section 12-44-130(D) of the
Act. To the extent that the aggregate investment in the Project by the end of the Investment
Period by all Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates exceeds $5,000,000.00, to the extent permitted by
Section 12-44-30(19) of the Simplified FILOT Act, all investment by such Sponsors and Sponsor
Affiliates during the Investment Period shall qualify for the FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01 of
this Agreement (subject to the other conditions set forth therein) regardless of whether each such
entity invested amounts equal to the Investment Commitment by the end of the Investment
Period. Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall provide the County and the Department of Revenue
with written notice of any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section
8.04 in accordance with Section 12-44-130(C) of the Simplified FILOT Act. The parties agree
that, if any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate ceases to become party to this Agreement, the
Agreement shall continue to remain in effect with respect to any remaining Sponsors or Sponsor
Affiliates.

Section 8.04. Compliance with GASB 77. The Company agrees annually to
prepare Form SC DOR PT-300G (Schedule G - Fee in Lieu of Tax Supplemental) with respect
to the Project, even if the Company is not required to file such form with the Department of
Revenue, and provide a copy to the County not later than June 30 of each year of the Term of
this Agreement in order to assist the County in complying with Statement No. 77 of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board known as “GASB 77.” The Company agrees further

21



to cooperate with the County in providing reasonably requested information regarding the
Project in order to assist the County in complying with GASB 77.

ARTICLE IX

FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS; CONVEYANCES; ASSIGNMENTS

Section 9.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment. The Company
and any Co-Investor may at any time: (a) assign or transfer all or any of its rights and interests

hereunder or with respect to the Project to any Person; or (b) enter into any lending, financing,
security, or similar arrangement or succession of such arrangements with any financing entity
with respect to the Agreement or the Project, including without limitation any sale, leaseback, or
other financing lease arrangement; provided that, in connection with any of the foregoing
transfers: (i) except in connection with any assignment or transfer to any Affiliate of the
Company or such Co-Investor, or transfers pursuant to clause (b) above, including, for the
avoidance of doubt, any assignment or transfer to any entity that assumes from the Company the
purchase agreement with respect to the Land (as to which such transfers the County hereby
consents), the Company or such Co-Investor shall first obtain the prior written approval or
subsequent ratification of the County, in the County’s sole discretion, and evidenced, to the
extent allowed by law, by a Resolution of County Council or a writing signed by an officer of the
County; (if) the Company or the applicable Co-Investor, transferee, or financing entity shall,
within sixty (60) days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department
of Revenue a true and complete copy of any such transfer agreement; and (iii) the Company or
the applicable Co-Investor and the transferee shall comply with all other requirements of the
Transfer Provisions.

The Company acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest under this Agreement or in
the Project may cause the Project to become ineligible for a Negotiated FILOT or result in
penalties under the Act absent compliance by the Company with the Transfer Provisions.

Section 9.02. Relative Rights of County and Financing Entities as Secured
Parties. The parties acknowledge the application of the provisions of Section 12-44-90 of the
Act, and that the County’s right to receive FILOT Payments hereunder shall be the same as its
rights conferred under Title 12, Chapter 49 and 54, among others, of the Code relating to the
collection and enforcement of ad valorem property taxes.

ARTICLE X

TERM; TERMINATION

Section 10.01. Term. Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms and
provisions herein contained, this Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect for a
term commencing on the date on which the Company executes this Agreement, and ending at
midnight on the last day of the Property Tax Year in which the last Negotiated FILOT Payment
is due hereunder. This Agreement has a term of thirty (30) years, as calculated pursuant to the
respective dates when the relevant portions of the Project are placed in service, and as discussed
in greater detail in this Agreement. The County’s rights to receive indemnification and payment

22



of Administration Expenses pursuant hereto shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

Section 10.02. Termination.

(a) The County and the Company may agree to terminate this Agreement at
any time, or the Company may, at its option, terminate this Agreement at any time upon
providing the County thirty (30) days’ notice of such termination, in which event the
Project shall be subject to ad valorem taxes from the date of termination. In the event
that this Agreement is terminated by the operation of this Section 10.02 at any time
during the initial Investment Period prior to the Company’s investment of at least Two
Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in the Project, amounts due to
the County as a result thereof shall be calculated as provided in Section 5.01(i) hereof.
The County’s rights to receive payment for such ad valorem taxes and its rights to
enforce the terms of this Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement.

(b)  This Agreement will automatically terminate as provided in Section 12-
44-140(B) of the Act in the event the investment requirements at the Project set forth in
Section 12-44-140(B) of the Act are not satisfied.

(c) The FILOT incentive with respect to any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate will
automatically terminate as provided in Section 12-44-140(C) of the Act in the event such
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate no longer has the statutory minimum level of investment at
the Project.

(d)  This Agreement will terminate in whole or in part in the event the
Company or any other Co-Investor removes real or personal property from the
Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 4.03(iii) hereof (with such termination effective
solely with respect to such removed property).

(e) This Agreement will automatically terminate as provided in Section
5.01(i) hereof.

(f) This Agreement will terminate in whole or in part in the event of casualty
or condemnation at the Project and the FILOT is abated pursuant to Section 7.01 hereof
(with such termination effective solely with respect to the property subject to such
casualty or condemnation).

23



ARTICLE XI
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 11.01. Events of Default by Company.

(a) Any one or more of the following events (herein called an “Event_of
Default”, or collectively “Events of Default™) shall constitute an Event of Default (but
solely with respect to the defaulting entity):

(1) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any FILOT
Payments,

(2)  if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any
indemnification payments or Administration Expenses, which default shall not
have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof
from the County;

3) if default shall be made by the Company in the due performance of or
compliance with any of the terms hereof, including payment, other than those
referred to in the foregoing paragraphs (1) and (2), and such default shall continue
for sixty (60) days after the County shall have given the Company written notice
of such default, provided, the Company shall have such longer period of time as
necessary to cure such default if the Company proceeds promptly to cure such
default and thereafter to prosecute the curing of such default with due diligence;
and provided further, that no Event of Default shall exist under this paragraph (3)
during any period when there is pending, before any judicial or administrative
tribunal having jurisdiction, any proceeding in which the Company has contested
the occurrence of such default.

(4) if any material representation or warranty on the part of the Company or
any Co-Investor made herein (including representations regarding the capital
investment resulting from the Project), or in any report, certificate, financial or
other statement furnished in connection with this Agreement or the transactions
described in this Agreement shall have been false or misleading in any material
respect.

(b)  The failure of the Company or any other Co-Investor to meet the
Investment Commitment as set forth herein shall not be deemed to be an Event of Default
under this Agreement, and the County’s sole recourse for failure to meet the Investment
Requirement shall be as set forth in Section 5.01 hereof.

Section 11.02. Remedies on Event of Default by Company. Upon the occurrence
and continuance of any Event of Default by Company (and the expiration of any applicable cure
periods), the County may exercise any of the following remedies, any of which may be exercised
at any time during the periods permitted under the following clauses:

24



(a) terminate this Agreement by delivery of written notice to the Company not
less than thirty (30) days prior to the termination date specified therein; or

(b) take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or
desirable to collect the amounts then due and thereafter to become due or to enforce
observance or performance of any covenant, condition, or agreement of the Company
under this Agreement.

Section 11.03. Default by County. Upon the default of the County in the
performance of any of its obligations hereunder, the Company may take whatever action at law
or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this Agreement,
including without limitation, a suit for mandamus or specific performance.

Section 11.04. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event any
warranty, covenant, or agreement contained in this Agreement should be breached by the
Company or the County and thereafter waived by the other party to this Agreement, such waiver
shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other
breach.

Section 11.05. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Co-Investor or

Sponsor Affiliate, if the County employs attorneys or incurs other reasonable expenses for the
collection of payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of
any obligation or agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand
therefor, to reimbursement of the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable
expenses so incurred.

ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 12.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative. Each right, power, and remedy
of the County or of the Company or any other Co-Investor provided for in this Agreement shall
be cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right, power or remedy
provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, in any
jurisdiction where such rights, powers and remedies are sought to be enforced; and the exercise
by the County or by the Company or any other Co-Investor of any one or more of the rights,
powers or remedies provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity or by statute or otherwise shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by the
County or by the Company or any other Co-Investor of any or all such other rights, powers or
remedies.

Section 12.02. Successors and Assigns. The terms and provisions of this

Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder.

25



Section 12.03. Administration Expenses. The Company agrees to reimburse the
County from time to time for its Administration Expenses promptly upon written request
therefore, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after receiving the written request from the
County. The written request shall include a description of the nature of the Administration
Expenses. The Administration Expenses reimbursable to the County pursuant to this Agreement
for the initial drafting and negotiation of this Agreement and related documentation shall not
exceed Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00).Section 12.04 Rules of Construction. The County
and the Company acknowledge and agree that each has been represented by legal counsel of its
choice throughout the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement, that each has participated in
the drafting hereof and that this Agreement will not be construed in favor of or against either
party solely on the basis of such party’s drafting or participation in the drafting of any portion of
this Agreement.

Section 12.05. Notices; Demands; Requests. All notices, demands and requests
to be given or made hereunder to or by the County or the Company shall be in writing and shalil
be deemed to be properly given or made if sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid
or via facsimile or other commonly-used electronic transmission or reputable courier service,
addressed as follows or to such other persons and places as may be designated in writing by such

party.
(a) As to the County:

Jasper County

Attn: Jasper County Administrator
358 Third Avenue

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Jasper County

Attn: Jasper County Attorney
358 Third Avenue

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936

(b) As to the Company:

L 1
(1]
[ 1]

With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Womble Bond Dickinson (US) LLP
Attn: Ms. Stephanie L. Yarbrough
5 Exchange Street

Charleston, South Carolina 29401

26



Section 12.06. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina.

Section 12.07. Entire Understanding. This Agreement expresses the entire
understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto with each other, and neither party hereto
has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation to the other party which is
not expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection with the
execution and delivery hereof.

Section 12.08. Severability. In the event that any clause or provision of this
Agreement shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of
such clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof.

Section 12.09. Headings and Table of Contents; References. The headings of the
Agreement and any Table of Contents annexed hereto are for convenience of reference only and
shall not define or limit the provisions hereof or affect the meaning or interpretation hereof. All
references in this Agreement to particular articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement
are references to the designated articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement.

Section 12.10. Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

Section 12.11. Amendments. Subject to the limitations set forth in the Act, this
Agreement may be amended, or the rights and interest of the parties hereunder surrendered, only
by a writing signed by all parties. The County agrees that, to the extent allowed by law, such
amendment may be approved by a Resolution of County Council.

Section 12.12. Waiver. Either party may waive compliance by the other party
with any term or condition of this Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party.

Section 12.13. Force Majeure. Except with respect to (i) the obligation to invest
at least Two Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in Economic Development
Property by the end of the Investment Period; and (ii} the payment obligations with respect to
FILOT Payments, the Administrative Expenses and indemnification of the Indemnified Parties
hereunder, the Company and any Co-Investors shall not be responsible for any delays or non-
performance caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by strikes, accidents, freight
embargoes, labor shortages, fire, floods, inability to obtain materials, war or national emergency,
acts of God, and any other cause, similar or dissimilar, beyond the Company’s reasonable
control.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

27



IN WITNESS THEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has
caused this Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the Council Chair and to be
attested by the Clerk to Council; and the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed by
its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written.

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

(SEAL)
By:
Barbara Clark
Chair of County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
ATTEST:
By:
Wanda Simmons
Clerk to County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
[PROJECT MANDOLIN]
By:
Name:
Title:

[Signature Page to FILOT Agreement]



EXHIBIT A
Land

[to be inserted before third reading]



WBD Draft of 1.31.22

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

) AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT
COUNTY OF JASPER ) OF MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/

) BUSINESS PARK (HARDEEVILLE PARK)
COUNTY OF HAMPTON )

THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF MULTI-COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK (HARDEEVILLE PARK) for the establishment of a multi-county
industrial/business park to be located within Jasper County and Hampton County is made and entered into as
of , 2022, by and between Jasper County, South Carolina (“Jasper County”) and Hampton County,
South Carolina (“Hampton County™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Jasper County and Hampton County are contiguous counties which, pursuant to
Ordinance No. , enacted by Jasper County Council on February 22, 2022, and Ordinance No.
__enacted by Hampton County Council on , 2022, have each determined that, in

order to promote economic development and thus encourage investment and provide additional employment
opportunities within both of said counties, there should be established in Jasper County a multi-county
industrial/business park (the “Park”), to be located upon property more particularly described in Exhibit A

(Jasper); and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the establishment of the Park, property comprising the Park and
all property having a situs therein is exempt from ad valorem taxation pursuant to Article VIII, Section
13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution, but the owners or lessees of such property shall pay annual fees
in an amount equivalent to the property taxes or other in-lieu-of payments that would have been due and
payable except for such exemption.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement, representations and benefits
contained in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Binding Agreement. This Agreement serves as a written instrument setting forth the entire
agreement between the parties and shall be binding on Jasper County and Hampton County, their successors
and assigns.

2. Authorization. Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution provides that
counties may jointly develop an industrial or business park with other counties within the geographical
boundaries of one or more of the member counties, provided that certain conditions specified therein are met
and further provided that the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina provides by law a manner in
which the value of property in such park will be considered for purposes of bonded indebtedness of political
subdivisions and school districts and for purposes of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to
any provision of law which measures the relative fiscal capacity of a school district to support its schools
based on the assessed valuation of taxable property in the district as compared to the assessed valuation of
taxable property in all school districts in South Carolina. The Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as
amended (the “Code”™) and particularly, Section 4-1-170 thereof, satisfies the conditions imposed by Article
VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution and provides the statutory vehicle whereby a multi-
county industrial or business park may be created.

3. Location of the Park.

WBD (US) 55488175v]



WBD Drafi of 1.31.22
(A) The Park consists of property that is located in Jasper County and which now or will be
owned by project sponsors for the purpose of establishing industrial, distribution and/or commercial
facilities, the property being more particularly described in Exhibit A hereto. It is specifically recognized
that the Park may from time to time consist of non-contiguous properties within Jasper County. The
boundaries of the Park may be enlarged or diminished from time to time as authorized by ordinance of the
county council of Jasper County (“Jasper Approval”), and resolution of the county council of Hampton
County (“Hampton Approval”). Except as permitted by the Intergovernmental Agreement dated as of
November 3, 2021 between Jasper County and the City of Hardeeville, South Carolina (“2021 1GA”™)
attached hereto as Exhibit B, if any property proposed for inclusion in the Park is focated, at the time such
inclusion is proposed, within the boundaries of a municipality, then the municipality must give its consent
prior to the inclusion of the property in the Park.

(B) In the event of any enlargement or diminution of the boundaries of the Park, this
Agreement shall be deemed amended and there shall be attached hereto a revised Exhibit A which shall
contain a legal description of the boundaries of the Park as enlarged or diminished, together with a copy
of Jasper Approval and the Hampton Approval pursuant to which such enlargement or diminution was
authorized.

<) Prior to any Jasper Approval authorizing the diminution of the boundaries of the Park, a
public hearing shall first be held by Jasper County Council. Notice of such public hearing shall be published
in a newspaper of general circulation in Jasper County, at least once and not less than fifteen (15) days prior
to such hearing. Notice of such public hearing shall also be given by certified mail that is deposited with the
U.S. Postal Service at least fifteen (15) days prior to such public hearing upon the owner and, if applicable,
the lessee of any property which would be excluded from the Park by virtue of the diminution.

4, Fee in Lieu of Taxes.

(A) Pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution, all property
located in the Park is exempt from all ad valorem taxation. The owners or lessees of any property situated
in the Park shall pay in accordance with this Agreement an amount (referred to as fees in lieu of ad valorem
taxes) equivalent to the ad valorem taxes or other in-lieu-of payments that would have been due and payable
but for the location of such property within the Park.

(B) The amount of the annual fees in liew of ad valorem taxes may be reduced if the owner or
lessee of property located in the Park (i) has negotiated a fee in-lieu-of taxes arrangement with respect to
the property with Jasper County pursuant to the provisions of Sections 12-44-10, et seq., 4-12-30, or 4-29-
67 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, or any successor provisions thereto as may be
provided under South Carolina law, or (ii) receives a special source revenue or infrastructure credit with
respect to the property under the provisions of Section 4-1-175 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976,
as amended, or any successor provisions thereto as may be provided under South Carolina law (collectively,
(i) and (ii), “Negotiated Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreements”).

5. Allocation of Expenses. Jasper County and Hampton County shall bear expenses incurred
in connection with the Park, including, but not limited to, those incurred in the administration, development,
operation, maintenance and promotion of the Park, in the following proportions:

A. Jasper County — 100%
B. Hampton County - 0%

6. Allocation of Revenues. Jasper County and Hampton County shall receive an allocation of
all revenues generated by the Park through payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes (“Park
Revenues™) in the following proportions:

WBD (US) 55488175v]



WBD Draft of 1.31.22
A. Jasper County -~ 99%
B. Hampton County — 1%

Any payment from Jasper County to Hampton County of Hampton County's allocable share of Park
Revenues shall be made and accompanied by a statement showing the manner in which total payment
and each County's share were calculated. If any Park Revenues are received by Jasper County through
payment by any owner, or any lessee/tenant, or any other taxpayer is made under protest, or otherwise
as part of a dispute, then Jasper County is not obligated to pay Hampton County more than Hampton
County's share of the undisputed portion of the Park Revenues until thirty (30) days after the final
resolution of the protest or dispute.

7. Revenue Allocation within Each County. Park Revenues received shall be distributed to
and within the County as follows:

(A)  Revenues generated by the Park through the payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes
shall be distributed to Jasper County and to Hampton County, as the case may be, according to the
proportions established by this Agreement. With respect to revenues allocable to Jasper County by way of
fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes generated from properties within the Park, such revenue shall be distributed
within Jasper County pursuant to the 2021 IGA.

(B)  With respect to revenues allocable to Hampton County by way of fees in lieu of ad valorem
taxes generated from properties located in the Park, such revenue shall be distributed within Hampton
County in accordance with a distribution scheme established by the Hampton County Council and, in the
absence of any such adopted distribution scheme, on a pro rata basis to the millage levying entities in
Hampton County.

8. Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Pursuant to Title 4 or Title 12 of the Code. It is
hereby agreed that the entry by Jasper County into any one or more Negotiated Fee in Lieu of Tax
Agreements with respect to property located within the Park and the terms of such agreements shall be
at the sole discretion of Jasper County.

9. Consent by the City and Other Municipalities. In accordance with the Act, the City
of Hardeeville, by Resolution No. 2021-11-4F and the terms of the 2021 IGA, has consented to the
location of the property within the City’s geographical boundaries in the Park as described on Exhibit A
as of the effective date of this agreement.

10. Assessed Valuation. For the purpose of calculating the bonded indebtedness limitation
and for the purpose of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to Section 59-20-20(3) of the
Code, allocation of the assessed value of property within the Park to Jasper County and Hampton County
and to each of the taxing entities within the participating counties shall be in accordance with the
allocation of revenue received and retained by each of the counties and by each of the taxing entities
within the participating counties, pursuant to Sections 6 and 7 herein.

11. Governing Laws and Regulations. Any applicable ordinances and regulations of Jasper
County including those concerning zoning, health and safety, and building code requirements shall apply to
the Park properties located in the Jasper County portion of the Park unless any such property is within the
boundaries of a municipality in which case, the municipality's applicable ordinances and regulations shall

apply.

11. South Carolina Law Controlling. This Agreement has been entered into in the State of
South Carolina and shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with South Carolina law.

WBD (US) 55488175v1



WBD Drafi of 1.31.22

12. Severability. In the event and to the extent (and only to the extent) that any provision

or any part of a provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of

competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the remainder of that
provision or any other provision of this Agreement.

13. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts.

14. Additional Parties, This Agreement may be amended from time to time to add additional
counties located in South Carolina, subject to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the Constitution of South
Carolina and Title 4, Chapter | of the Code, by ordinance of the county council of Jasper County, and by
resolution of the county council of Hampton County; provided, however, that to the extent permitted by
law, additional counties may be added as parties hereto with only the enactment of an ordinance of the
county council of Jasper County only in the event that such additional county's allocation of Park Revenues
hereunder shall be allocated solely out of Jasper County's residual net share of the Park Revenues provided
for its use and distribution pursuant to Section 7 hereof.

15. Term; Termination. Except as specifically provided in this Section 15, Jasper County
and Hampton County agree that this Agreement may not be terminated in its entirety by unilateral action
of any party and shall remain in effect for a period equal to the longer of (i) thirty-one (31) years
commencing with the effective date of this Agreement or (ii) a period of time of sufficient length to
facilitate any special source revenue credits due with respect to Park property. This Agreement may be
terminated at any time upon adoption of ordinances by the County Councils of both Jasper County and
Hampton County, which ordinances must specifically authorize the termination of this Agreement.

16. Law Enforcement Jurisdiction. Jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise all authority
and power within the boundaries of the Park properties is vested with the Sheriff's Office of Jasper County,
for matters within their jurisdiction. If any of the Park properties are within the boundaries of a
municipality, then jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise law enforcement jurisdiction is also vested with
the law enforcement officials of the municipality for matters within their jurisdiction,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the day
and the year first above written.

[signatures on following page)

WBD (US) 55488175vl1



[SEAL]
Attest:

By:

County Council Clerk
Jasper County, South Carolina

[SEAL]
Attest:

By:

County Council Clerk
Hampton County, South Carolina

WBD (US) 55488175v1

WBD Draft of 1.31.22

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Chairman, County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina

HAMPTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Chairman, Couhty Council
Hampton County, South Carolina



WBD Draft of 1.31.22
Exhibit A (Jasper)
PARK PROPERTY

All those certain properties consisting of the Monroe Tract (TMS ## 038-00-04-059 and 039-00-03-004).

WBD (US) 55488175vi



WBD Draft of 1.31.22
Exhibit B
Intergovernmental Agreement

WBD (US) 5548381 75v]



AGENDA ITEM:
XI-C

Ordinance item C



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-30

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE-IN-LIEU OF TAX
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN A COMPANY KNOWN FOR THE TIME BEING AS
“PROJECT DOLPHIN” (THE “COMPANY”) AND JASPER COUNTY, WHEREBY
JASPER COUNTY WILL ENTER INTO A FEE-IN-LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT WITH
THE COMPANY AND PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT BY THE COMPANY OF
CERTAIN FEES-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH AGREEMENT;
PROVIDING FOR THE ALLOCATION OF FEES-IN-LIEU OF TAXES PAYABLE
UNDER THE AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A MULTI-COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.,

WHEREAS, Jasper County, South Carolina (the “County™), acting by and through its County
Council (the “County Council”) is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions
of Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “FILOT
Act”), to designate real and tangible personal property as “economic development property” and to
enter into an arrangement which provides for payments-in-lieu of taxes (“FILOT Payments™) for a
project qualifying under the FILOT Act; and

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through the County Council, is further authorized and
empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code of Laws of
South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively, the “the MCIP Act”) to provide for payments-in-
lieu of taxes with respect to property located in a multi-county business or industrial park created
under the MCIP Act and to permit investors to claim special source credits against their FILOT
Payments to reimburse such investors for expenditures for infrastructure serving the County and
improved or unimproved real estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment,
used or to be used in the operation of manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance
the economic development of Jasper County (“Infrastructure Improvements”); and to create, in
conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county park in order to afford certain
enhanced tax credits to such investors and facilitate the grant of special source or infrastructure
improvement credits; and

WHEREAS, “Project Dolphin” (referred to herein as the “Company™) is considering an industrial
development at a site located in the City of Hardeeville (“City”) in Jasper County by acquiring and
constructing real property and real property improvements (the “Project”) which the Company
estimates will likely consist of a capital investment of at least Twenty-Three Million Four Hundred
Ninety Thousand Dollars ($23,490,000.00).

WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into a Fee Agreement with the Company, as the
Company has expressed its intent to the County to make a capital investment in the County (i.e.,
the Project);

WBD (US) 54578289v5



WHEREAS, the Project is located entirely within Jasper County and, with the consent of the
Partner County (as defined herein) and the City of Hardeeville, will be included in and subject to
the multi-county park and fee-in-lieu of tax arrangements as described herein; and

WHEREAS, the County has made specific proposals, including proposals to offer certain
economic development incentives set forth herein, for the purpose of inducing the Company to
invest its funds to acquire and equip the Project (the “Incentives™); and

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest, for the public benefit and in furtherance of the public
purposes of the FILOT Act and the MCIP Act that the County Council provide approval for
qualifying the Project under the FILOT Act and the entire Project under the MCIP Act for the
Incentives;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council as follows:

Section 1. Evaluation of the Project. The County Council has evaluated the Project on the
following criteria based upon the advice and assistance of the South Carolina Department of
Revenue:

(a) whether the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper govemmental and
public purposes;

(b) the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment to be made; and
(c) the anticipated costs and benefits to the County.
Section 2. Findings by County Council. Based upon information provided by and
representations of the Company, County Council’s investigation of the Project, including the

criteria described in Section 1 above, and the advice and assistance of the South Carolina
Department of Revenue, as required, County Council hereby find that:

(a) the Project constitutes a “project” as that term is defined in the FILOT Act;

(b) the Project will serve the purposes of the FILOT Act;

(c) the Company anticipates an investment of at least Twenty-Three Million Four Hundred
Ninety Dollars ($23,490,000.00) within eight (8) years from the end of the property tax
year in which the Company and the County execute the FILOT Agreement (as defined
herein);

(d) the Project will be located entirely within the County;

(e) the Project will benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services,
employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally;

(D) the Project will not give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County or any municipality nor a
charge against its general credit or taxing power of the County or any municipality;

WBD (US) 54578289v5



(g) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public
purposes;

(h) the inducement of the location of the Project is of paramount importance; and
(1) the benefits of the Project to the public are greater than the costs to the public.

Section 3. Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Arrangement. Pursuant to the authority of the FILOT Act,
the Project is hereby designated as “economic development property” under the FILOT Act and
there is hereby authorized a fee-in-lieu of taxes arrangement with the Company for a term of thirty
(30} years, which will provide FILOT Payments to be made with respect to the Project based upon
a 6% assessment ratio and a millage rate which shall be fixed for the full term of the agreement at
457.0 mills, and including Special Source Revenue Credits in the amount of 40% of the Project for
each year of the Term (as defined in the FILOT Agreement), subject to reduction at the County’s
discretion based on failure to achieve certain investment thresholds during the investment period,
all as more fully set forth in the Fee Agreement by and between the Company and the County (the
“FILOT Agreement”).

Section 4. Extension of Investment Period. The Company has represented to the County
that it does not anticipate completing the Project within five (5) years of the last day of the property
tax year during which economic development property is first placed in service (the “Investment
Period”). Accordingly, the Company has applied to the County for an extension of time to
complete the Project pursuant to Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act. The County hereby
extends the Investment Period by three (3) additional years; provided however that there is no
extension of the period for meeting the minimum statutory investment requirement as specified in
Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act.

Section 5. Execution of the Fee Agreement. The form, terms and provisions of the FILOT
Agreement presented to this meeting and filed with the Clerk of the County Council be and hereby
are approved, and all of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein
by reference as if such FILOT Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chair
of the County Council and the Clerk of the County Council be and they are hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the FILOT Agreement in the name
and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the FILOT Agreement to be delivered to the
Company. The FILOT Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and
hereby approved, or with any changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of
the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the County Attorney and the officials of the
County executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their
approval of all changes therein from the form of FILOT Agreement now before this meeting.

Section 6. Multi-County Park.

(a) The County, in cooperation with Hampton County (the “Partner County”) and subject to
the consent of the City of Hardeeville, which consent has been provided pursuant to that
certain Intergovernmental Agreement dated as of November 5, 2021 between lasper
County and the City of Hardeeville, South Carolina (the “2021 IGA™), hereby designates
the site of the Project as a multi-county park (the “Park”™) pursuant to Article VIII, Section
13 of the Constitution of South Carolina, the MCIP Act, and the terms of that certain

WBD (US) 54578289v5



Agreement for the Establishment of Multi-County Industrial/Business Park by and between
the County and the Partner County and dated as of even date herewith or the date of the
Partner County’s approval of said Agreement (the “MCIP Agreement”). In the FILOT
Agreement, the County will agree to use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain
such designation throughout the term of the FILOT Agreement.

(b) Pursuant to the terms of the MCIP Act and the MCIP Agreement, the County hereby
provides that throughout the term of the FILOT Agreement, the annual allocation of the
fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes payable by the Company to the County in accordance with
the terms of the MCIP Agreement, after deducting any amounts distributed to the Partner
County, will be distributed as follows:

a. To the County, for providing the Special Source Revenue Credits, an amount equal
to the annual Special Source Revenue Credits provided in Section 3 of this
Ordinance and in the FILOT Agreement; and

b. After making the allocations under paragraph (a) of this Section, Park Revenues (as
defined in the MCIP Agreement) derived from the Project shall be distributed in
accordance with the MCIP Agreement and allocable to the County as the “Host
County” under the MCIP Agreement in accordance with that certain
Intergovernmental Agreement dated November 5™, 2021 between the County and
the City.

Section 7. Miscellaneous.

(a) The Chair and all other appropriate officials of the County are hereby authorized to
execute, deliver and receive any other agreements and documents as may be required by
the County in order to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions authorized
by this Ordinance.

(b) This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State
of South Carolina.

(c) This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon approval following its third
reading by the County Council.

(d) The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable and if any section,
phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be invalid or unenforceable, that declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of
the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder.

(e) All ordinances, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of the
conflict, hereby repealed.

[Signature Page to Follow]

WBD (US) 54578289v5



ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this __ day of

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

By:

Wanda Simmons
Clerk to County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina

First Reading:
Second Reading:
Public Hearing:
Third Reading:

October 4, 2021
February 7, 2022

WBD (US) 54578289v5

, 2022,

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Barbara Clark
Chair of County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina



Draft - January 27, 2022

FEE AGREEMENT
by and between
[PROJECT DOLPHIN]}
and
JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Dated as of {February 22, 2022]

WBD (US) 3457651 1v6



Table of Contents

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS AND RECAPITULATION .....ouoiuiiieceieceeecossecosssessssesseesessssessens 5
Section 1.01. Statutorily Required Recapitulation ...........ccocoeiiiiiiriiiini e esenensenann 5
Section 1.02. DefINItIONS ......cccoiiiiiiiiieienne et ss s eee s eseesere s senessasssseesesens 6
Section 1.03. References to AGreEMENt.........ccocuecueeeririerirecisisesesee e eeeeeeseseesssseesses s, 10

ARTICLE Il REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ..o iseesreseseesssesesseessesessees 10
Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by COUNLY ........cc.c.oveveviveereeeesseeeeeeeeees e, 10
Section 2.02, Representations and Warranties by the COMPaNY .............cooovveeeureeeeenororeeresinns 10

ARTICLE Il UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COUNTY .........covuvircsmrsuscsosereomesmsassrsasesssssssasassions 11
Section 3.01  Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments; Rollback Taxes........c..coovvvrvrvvenann., 11
Section 3.02  No Warranties by COUNLY. .......c.co.oviviviiiiioreeeeeneeeeeeee e esssee s sesseeeesssssses i2
Section 3.03  Invalidity ..oveeeeeeeece e b i SR 12
secton 304 MOLi-Coanty Park SIS . guuiasiiis i iovnaiiiiamis s R e 13

ARTICLE IV UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COMPANY .......coiiiimiimeiosereeeesreseresessssssneseses s 13
Section 4.01. Investment by Company in ProjJeCt..........occcivvorereereceeeeeoreseses e sesseesssessesnns 13
Section 4.02. Reporting and FiliNg ........coocoeiiiisicie e oo ssse e esssssesesnes s 13
Section 303 Modiicati O OF Projett i s S e S i 14

ARTICLE V PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES........ccoveecieniimstimsssisssseeseemsseesssssresssssssessssessens 15
Section 5.01. Payments in Lieu of Ad Valorem TaXes ...........ocovivvieeieoeeeeeeeeeeseee e 15

ARTICLE VI PAYMENTS BY COMPANRNY . .....cccciemismsimsssissnsissosivinsaivonsiio T R 19
Section 601 Defaulted PAYMEIS . i i e e 19

ARTICLE VII CASUALTY AND CONDEMNATION ......ooveviieeevercesrersssssseseeseesseseesssssssssesss 19
Section 7.01. Adjustments in the Event of Damage and Destruction or Condemnation........... 19

ARTICLE VIII PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS.......ooooeeeveeeeiveseeererns 20
Section 8.01. Use of Project for Lawful ACHVItIES...........ovovvvrieiiecceecceecseece e nesnn e 20
Section 8.02. Indemnification .........ocoverirereeeieeeriec st e e ees e et s e eesseeseses s 20
Section 8.03. Sponsors and Sponsor AFfIALES...........cc.coeveieeveeesinersesessseees s eeeseesessseesenes 21
Section B.04. Compliance wWith GASB 77 ... iiiivivisiiesius isisitsiimmbaii i sisiig 21

ARTICLE IX FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS; CONVEYANCES; ASSIGNMENTS .......... 22
Section 9.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; ASSIZNMeNt...........coooveeeveeerveveesiveresssnn. 22
Section 9.02. Relative Rights of County and Financing Entities as Secured Parties ...............22

ARTICLE X TERM; TERMINATION oot mi s b iiita 22



oot om0 D A O s o i T 0 Hmmemom s e e e A R 23
ARTICLE XI EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES.......ccoooieieeieeeeeecsces e 24
Section 11101 Events.of Defalt By COMPAIT, st io ti s i vt G s 24
Section 11.02. Remedies on Event of Default by Company ...........c.coccooiovnniirieresneseseeseennns 24
Section 11.03. Default by COUNLY ....c.ooiiiieieeeeeeeiees s en s e sreseeeeeeseseseeessesens 25
Section 11.04. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver..........cocoeeevveeeevceeervieessseresnsenns 25
Section 11.05. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses ................... 25
ARHELE XIMISCELEANEOUS ovnissaniiin it ideiap oy 25
Section 12.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative...........cooiuivviieoiionnieneiine e e ceeeenses 25
Section 12,02 SUcCesstrs ARt ARRIINR. . -« wo o s st s e s s S s e 25
Section:12:03 - Administration EXPEnRes. . ...ouvim e s s g RSt sin 26
Section 12.05. Notices; Demands; REQUESES .....c...o.cuereereereeeeceieseesses s ssssssssess e esssssssesnenn. 26
Section 12.06. ApPlICablE LAW .......cciiiiiuieiirseieres st ssresssses s s s eseseessessseeesnns 27
Section 12.07. Entite UNderstandiie .. oo e i st i S i 27
Section 12,08, Sewerabiliby: oo i i is e e 27
Section 12.09. Headings and Table of Contents; References. ........coveeeeeeveie e sreivesssessesesnns 27
Section: 12, 10 MulP1E CouBBErDATES, 1 .coiirsinvetunisisrississsaosmsassissti o nmsssouibonti s nisasiiis s 27
SECION) 2ol T ATTBTATREING . cxisoiiviosnivisies mais it dos SR o e Gl S e 8T 27
B ECtON 2.0 2 WV i o L S St o L oo e remmmanmns 27
Section 12,13, FOree MEaJBUME .....veveeeeieeeeeceeseccsnns s es s st s e s es s e e sene e enea et ene s et eaes 27



FEE AGREEMENT

This FEE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is dated as of [February 22, 2022] by and
between [PROJECT DOLPHIN], a | ] (the *Company”), and Jasper County, South
Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina

(the “County™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the “Council™), is
authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the
“Act”) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the date hereof (the
“Code”) and Sections 4-1-170, 4-1-172, and 4-1-175 of the Code and Article VIII, Section 13(D)
of the South Carolina Constitution (the “Multi-County Park Act™): (i) to enter into agreements
with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, and improve certain industrial and
commercial properties through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina
will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to
locate and remain in the State of South Carolina and thus utilize and employ the workforce,
agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; (/i) to covenant with such investors to
accept certain payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to the project (a “FILOT”); (i)
to maintain, create or expand, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county
industrial park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors; and (iv)
permit investors to claim special source credits against FILOT payments to reimburse such
investors for expenditures for infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used or to be used in the
operation of manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic
development of the County;

WHEREAS, the Company proposes to purchase and develop the Project (as defined
herein) within the County;

WHEREAS, the Company anticipates that the Project will result in an investment of
Twenty-Three Million Four Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars ($23,490,000.00) in the County;

WHEREAS, as a result of the Company locating certain operations in the County, the
Company requested that the County complete the FILOT arrangement by entering into this
Agreement with the Company pursuant to the Act, and the Company elects to enter into such
FILOT arrangement with the County in an effort to encompass the terms surrounding the Project
and allowing the Company to make FILOT Payments pursuant to the Act;

WHEREAS, for the Project, the parties have also determined that the Company is a
Sponsor, and that the Project constitutes Economic Development Property, each within the
meaning of the Act; and

WHEREAS, for the purposes set forth above, the County has determined that it is in the
best interests of the County to enter into this Agreement with the Company, subject to the terms
and conditions herein set forth.

4



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements
hereinafter contained, and the sum of $1.00 in hand, duly paid by the Company to the County,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the Company
agree as follows:

ARTICLE]
DEFINITIONS AND RECAPITULATION

Section 1.01. Statutorily Required Recapitulation.

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-55(B) of the Act, the County and the Company
agree to waive the recapitulation requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Act.
Subsection (b) of this section is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a
part of this Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the Act.

(b) Summary of Agreement:

1. Legal name of each initial party to this Agreement:

[PROJECT DOLPHIN]
Jasper County, South Carolina

2. County, street address, parcel number or other location identifier of the
Project and property to be subject to this Agreement:

See Exhibit A

3. Minimum investment agreed upon: $23,490,000.00

4. Length and term of this Agreement: thirty (30} years for each annual
increment of investment in the Project during the Investment Period

5. Investment Period: eight (8) years

6. Assessment ratio applicable for each year of this Agreement: 6%

7. Millage rate applicable for each year of this Agreement: 457.0 mills

8. Schedule showing the amount of the fee and its calculation for each year
of this Agreement: Waived by the County and the Company.

0. Schedule showing the amount to be distributed annually to each of the
affected taxing entities: Waived by the County and the Company.



10. Statements

(a) The Project is to be located in a multi-county industrial or business
park;

(b) Disposal of property subject to payments-in-lieu-of-taxes is
allowed;

(c) Special Source Revenue Credits will be provided in an amount of
forty percent (40%) of FILOT payments for each year of the Term.

(c) Payment will not be modified using a net present value calculation;
and

(d) Replacement property provisions will apply.

11.  Any other feature or aspect of this Agreement which may affect the
calculation of items (8 and (9) of this summary.
None.

12, Description of the effect upon the schedules required by items (8) and (9)
of this summary of any feature covered by items (10) and (11) not
reflected in the schedules for items (8) and (9): Waived by the County and
the Company.

13 Which party or parties to this Agreement are responsible for updating any
information contained in this summary: The Company.

Section 1.02. Definitions. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this
Agreement, the following words and terms as used herein and in the preambles hereto shall have
the following meanings, unless the context or use indicates another or different meaning or
intent.

“der” or “Simplified FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code, as
amended through the date hereof.

“Administration Expense” shall mean the reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket
expenses, including attorneys’ fees, incurred by the County with respect to: (i) the preparation,
review, approval and execution of this Agreement; (ii) the preparation, review, approval and
execution of other documents related to this Agreement and any multi-county park documents;
and (iii) the fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement and any multi-county park
documents, and in the implementation and administration of the terms and provisions of the
documents after the date of execution thereof.

“Affiliate” shall mean any Person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or
under common control with such other Person. For purposes of this definition, “control” means
the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of the Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by
contract, or otherwise.



“Agreement” shall mean this Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Agreement by and among the County
and the Company, as originally executed and from time to time supplemented or amended as
permitted herein, and dated as of [February 22, 2022].

“Co-investor” shall mean the Company, any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate within
the meaning of Sections 12-44-30(19) and (20} of the Act, any Affiliate of the Company or of
any such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, any tenant leasing all or a portion of the Project
from the Company or any other existing Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, any developer in a build-
to-suit arrangement or other leasing arrangement with respect to the Project, any lessor of
equipment or other property comprising a part of the Project, and any financing entity or other
third party investing in, providing funds for or otherwise making investment in real or personal
property in connection with the Project. The Company shall notify the County in writing of the
identity of any other Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate or other Co-Investor and shall, to the extent the
Company and any such other Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate, or other Co-Investor intend to extend
the benefits of the FILOT to property owned by any such Sponsor, Sponsor Affiliate, or other
Co-Investor pursuant to Section 6.02 hereof, comply with any additional notice requirements, or
other applicable provisions, of the Act. As of the original execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the Company is the only Co-Investor.

“Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the
date hereof, unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the
Project or any portion thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day
of the property tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the
Company enter into this Agreement.

“Company” shall mean [PROJECT DOLPHIN], a | ], and its successors and
assigns.

“Confidential Information” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.02(c) hereof.

“County” shall mean Jasper County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a
political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, and its successors and assigns.

“County Council” shall mean the governing body of the County and its successors.

“Department of Revenue” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue.

“Economic Development Property” shall mean each item of real and tangible personal
property comprising the Project, except Non-Qualifying Property, if any, within the meaning of
that term as defined and used in Sections 12-44-30(6) and 12-44-40(C) of the Code.

“Equipment” shall mean all machinery, equipment, furnishings, and other personal
property acquired by the Company and installed as part of the Project during the Investment

Period in accordance with this Agreement.

“Event of Defaulr” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11.01 hereof,
7



“Existing Property” shall mean property proscribed from becoming Economic
Development Property pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the Code, including, without limitation,
property which has been subject to ad valorem taxes in the State prior to the execution and
delivery of this Agreement and property included in the Project as part of the repair, alteration, or
modification of such previously taxed property; provided, however, that Existing Property shall
not include: (i) property acquired or constructed by the Company during the Investment Period
which has not been placed in service in this State prior to the Investment Period notwithstanding
that ad valorem taxes have heretofore been paid with respect to such property; (i/) modifications
which constitute an expansion of Existing Property; or (iii} property described in Section 12-44-
110 of the Code to the extent that the Company and any Co-Investors invest at least an additional
Forty-Five Million Dollars ($45,000,000.00) in the Project.

“FILOT” shall mean the fee-in-lieu of taxes, which the Company are obligated to pay to
the County pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof.

“FILOT Payments” shall mean the payments to be made by the Company or any Co-
Investor with respect to its respective portion of the Project, whether made as Negotiated FILOT
Payments pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof or as FILOT payments made pursuant to the Multi-
County Park Act.

“Investment Commitment” shall mean the agreement of the Company and any other Co-
Investors to make investments with respect to the Project as set forth in Sections 2.02(d) and 4.01
of this Agreement.

“Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day that Economic
Development Property is purchased or acquired and ending on the date that is eight (8) years
from the Commencement Date (which Investment Period represents a five-year investment
period, plus an additional three (3) years that the County has hereby granted pursuant to the Act).

“Land” shall mean the real estate upon which the Project is to be located, as described in
Exhibit A attached hereto. Additional real estate may be included as part of Exhibit A as
provided in Section 4.03(i), and the Company shall deliver to the County an updated Exhibit A to
reflect such addition.

“Multi-County Park” shall mean the multi-county industrial/business park established
pursuant to that certain Agreement for the Establishment of Multi-County Industrial/Business
Park, by and between the County and Hampton County, South Carolina (as amended, modified,
supplemented or replaced from time to time).

“Multi-County Park Act” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals hereto.
“Negotiated FILOT” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.01(b)(ii) hereof.

“Negotiated FILOT Payment” shall mean the FILOT due pursuant to Section 5.01(b)
hereof with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of Economic Development Property.



“Non-Qualifying Property” shall mean that portion of the Project, if any, consisting of: (/)
property as to which the Company incurred expenditures prior to the Investment Period or,
except as to Replacement Property, after the end of the Investment Period; (/) Existing Property;
and (#ii) any Released Property or other property which fails or ceases to qualify for Negotiated
FILOT Payments, including without limitation property as to which the Company have
terminated the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 4.03(a)(iii) hereof.

“Person” shall mean and include any individual, association, unincorporated
organization, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or government or
agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Project” shall mean, collectively herein, the Land and buildings and other improvements
on the Land to the extent placed thereon by or on behalf of the Company or any Co-Investor,
including water, sewer treatment and disposal facilities, and other machinery, apparatus,
equipment, office facilities, and furnishings which are necessary, suitable, or useful, including
the Equipment, and any Replacement Property.

“Project Millage Rate” shall mean a millage rate of 457.0 mills.

“Property Tax Year” shall mean the annual period which is equal to the fiscal year of the
Company, or any other Co-Investor, as the case may be.

“Released Property” shall mean any portion of the Project removed, scrapped, traded in,
sold, or otherwise disposed of pursuant to Section 4.03 hereof, any portion of the Project stolen,
damaged, destroyed, or taken by condemnation or eminent domain proceedings as described in
Article VII hereof, and any infrastructure which the Company dedicates to the public use (within
the meaning of that phrase as used in Section 12-6-3420(C) of the Code).

“Replacement Property” shall mean all property installed in or on the Land in
substitution of, or as replacement for, any portion of the Project, but only to the extent that such
property may be included in the calculation of the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01(c)
hereof and Section 12-44-60 of the Code.

“Special Source Revenue Credits” shall mean the special source credits provided
pursuant to Section 5.01(d) hereof.

“Sponsor” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12-44-30(19) of the Code. As of
the date of this Agreement, the Company is the only Sponsor.

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12-44-30(20) of the Code.
“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina.
“Term” shall mean the term of this Agreement, as set forth in Section 10.01 hereof.

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the Code, as
amended through the date hereof.



Section 1.03. References to Agreement. The words “hereof”, “herein”,
“hereunder”, and other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole,

ARTICLE II
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by County. The County makes the
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein
contained:

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of
the State of South Carolina and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act
to enter into the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its
obligations hereunder.

(b) The County, based on representations of the Company, has determined
that the Project will serve the purposes of the Act, and has made all other findings of fact
required by the Act in order to designate the Project as Economic Development Property.

(c) By proper action of the County Council, the County has duly authorized
the execution and delivery of this Agreement and any and all actions necessary and
appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(d) This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the
County.

(e) The County agrees to use its commercially reasonable efforts to continue
to cause the Land to be located within the Multi-County Park, and the County will take
all reasonable acts to ensure that the Project will continuously be included within the
boundaries of the Muiti-County Park or another multi-county park during the Term of
this Agreement in order that the maximum tax benefits afforded by the laws of the State
for projects in the County located within multi-county industrial parks will be available to
the Company.

63) No actions, suits, proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the
undersigned representatives of the County are pending or threatened against or affecting
the County in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or
tribunal, which could materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement or which could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of
this Agreement.

Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by the Company. The Company
makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part
herein contained:

10



(a) The Company is a | ], validly existing and in good standing
under the laws of | | and authorized to do business in the State; has all requisite
power to enter into this Agreement; and by proper action has been duly authorized to
execute and deliver this Agreement.

(b) The agreements with the County with respect to the FILOT have been
instrumental in inducing the Company to locate the Project within the County and the
State.

() Except as otherwise disclosed to the County, no actions, suits,
proceedings, inquiries, or investigations known to the undersigned representatives of the
Company are pending or threatened against or affecting the Company in any court or
before any governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, which could
materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or which
could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement.

(d) For the Project, the Company commits to an investment, collectively with
any Co-Investors, of at least Twenty-Three Million Four Hundred Ninety Thousand
Dollars ($23,490,000.00) (the “Project Commitment™) in Economic Development
Property by the end of the eight-year Investment Period. The investment amount shall
not include any amount paid by the Company for real estate improvements on the Land
placed in service as of the date of this Agreement. Investments made by the Company
and any Co-Investors in Economic Development Property shall be included in the
determination whether the Company has fulfilled its commitment made in this item to
invest in the Project.

(e) The income tax year of the Company, and accordingly the Property Tax
Year, for federal income tax purposes is a 52/53 week fiscal year ending [December 31].

® No event has occurred and no condition currently exists with respect to the
Company, which would constitute a default or an Event of Default as defined herein.

(g) This Agreement is a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the Company
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as such terms may
be limited by laws affecting creditors’ rights generally.

ARTICLE III
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COUNTY

Section 3.01 Agreement to Accept FILOT Payments; Rollback Taxes.

(a) The County hereby agrees to accept FILOT Payments made by the
Company and any Co-Investor in accordance with Section 5.01 hereof in lieu of ad
valorem taxes with respect to the Project until this Agreement expires or is sooner
terminated.

11



(b) The County hereby acknowledges and agrees that, pursuant to Section 12-
43-220(d)(6) of the Act, no Economic Development Property shall be subject to rollback
taxes. The County further covenants, to the extent allowed by law, that any portion of the
Land that has not been developed by the Company (or by any Co-Investors) shall
continue to be assessed using the agricultural assessment ratio until such Land is
developed, so long as such property lawfully qualifies for such assessment ratio.

Section 3.02 No Warranties by County. The Company acknowledges that the
County has made no warranties or representations, either express or implied, as to the condition
or state of the Project or as to the design or capabilities of the Project or that it will be suitable
for the Company’s purposes or needs. No representation of the County is hereby made with
regard to compliance by the Project or any Person with laws regulating: (i) the construction or
acquisition of the Project; (if) environmental matters pertaining to the Project; (iii) the offer or
sale of any securities; or (iv) the marketability of title to any property.

Section 3.03 Invalidity. The parties acknowledge that the intent of this
Agreement is to afford the Company and any Co-Investors the benefits of the Negotiated FILOT
Payments in consideration of the Company’s decision to locate the Project within the County and
that this Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the enactment of the Simplified
FILOT Act. In the event that, for any reason, the Act and/or the Negotiated FILOT or any
portion thereof is, by a court of competent jurisdiction following allowable appeals, declared
invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, or the portion of the Project consisting of Economic
Development Property is deemed not to be eligible for a Negotiated FILOT pursuant to the Act
in whole or in part, the Company and the County express their intentions that such payments be
reformed so as to afford the Company or any Co-Investors benefits commensurate with those
intended under this Agreement as then permitted by law, including without limitation any
benefits afforded under the Code, to the extent allowed by law. Absent the legal authorization to
effect such reformation, the Company and the County agree that there shall be due hereunder,
with respect to the portion of the Economic Development Property affected by such
circumstances, ad valorem taxes and that, to the extent permitted by law, the Company and any
Co-Investors shall be entitled: (/) to enjoy the five-year exemption from ad valorem taxes (or
fees in lieu of taxes) provided by Article X, Section 3 of the Constitution of the State, and any
other exemption allowed by law; (ii) to enjoy all allowable depreciation; and (iif) to receive other
tax credits which would be due if the Company or any Co-Investor were obligated to pay ad
valorem taxes hereunder. To the extent that under such circumstances the Negotiated FILOT
Payments hereunder are required by law to be subject to retroactive adjustment, then there shall
be due and payable by the Company or any Co-Investor to the County with respect to the portion
of the Economic Development Property in question an amount equal to the difference between
the Negotiated FILOT Payments theretofore actually paid and the amount which would have
been paid as ad valorem taxes, together with, but only if required by law, interest on such
deficiency as provided in Section 12-54-25(D) of the Code. The Company agrees that if this
Agreement is reformed as provided in this Section or if retroactive adjustments are made, then
under no circumstances shall the County be required to refund or pay any monies to the
Company or any Co-Investor.

12



In addition to and notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, the County shall not be
obligated to perform any of its obligations or promises under this Section 3.03 unless the
Company has otherwise complied with or provides satisfactory evidence to the County that it
intends to comply with its obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement.

Section 3.04 Multi-County Park Status. The County agrees to use its
commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the Land in the Multi-County Park until the date this
Agreement expires or is terminated. If it becomes necessary to remove the Land from the Multi-
County Park prior to the expiration or termination of this Agreement, the County agrees to use its
commercially reasonable efforts to place the Land in another multi-county park established
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act and to maintain the multi-county park designation until
the date this Agreement is terminated. The parties acknowledge and agree that the County’s
agreement to place and maintain the Land in a multi-county park may be subject to the exercise
of discretion by a governmental entity other than the County and the exercise of that discretion is
not controlled by the County.

ARTICLE IV
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COMPANY

Section 4.01. Investment by Company in Project. For the Project, the Company
agrees to invest, collectively with any Co-Investors, at least Twenty-Three Million Four Hundred
Ninety Thousand Dollars $23,490,000.00in Economic Development Property by the end of the
Investment Period. Investments made by the Company and any Co-Investors in Economic
Development Property shall be included in any determination whether the Company has fulfilled
its commitments made in this Section.

Section 4.02. Reporting and Filing.

(a) The Company agrees to provide a copy of Form PT-443 filed with the
Department of Revenue to the County Auditor, the County Economic Development
Director, the County Attorney, the County Administrator and the County Assessor of the
County and the County Auditor and the County Assessor of Hampton County, not later
than thirty (30) days after execution and delivery of this Agreement. Each year during
the Term of this Agreement, the Company shall deliver to the County Auditor, the
County Economic Development Director, the County Attorney, the County Assessor, the
County Administrator and the County Treasurer, a copy of their most recent annual
filings made with the Department of Revenue with respect to the Project, not later than
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department of Revenue. The Company
acknowledges that the terms of the Act provide that to the extent requested, the Jasper
County Auditor shall make such forms and returns available to the County Auditor of
Hampton County. The Company agrees to provide the County with written notice of any
failure to comply with the reporting requirements set forth in this Section.

(b) The Company agrees to maintain such books and records with respect to
the Project as will permit the identification of those portions of the Project placed in

13



service in each Property Tax Year during the Investment Period, the amount of
investment with respect thereto and its computations of all FILOT Payments made
hereunder and will comply with all reporting requirements of the State and the County
applicable to property subject to FILOT Payments under the Act, including the reports
described in paragraph (a) (collectively, “Filings™).

(c) The County acknowledges and understands that the Company may have
and maintain at the Project certain confidential and proprietary information, including,
but not limited to, trade secrets, financial, sales or other information concerning the
Company’s operations and processes (“Confidential Information”) and that any
disclosure of the Confidential Information could result in substantial harm to the
Company and could have a significant detrimental impact on the Company’s employees
and also upon the County. The Company acknowledges that the County is subject to the
provisions of the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act. The County acknowledges
that information the Company may hereafter provide to the County and which is clearly
identified as Confidential Information may be deemed by the Company to be confidential
and proprietary. To the extent that the Company clearly identifies information as
Confidential Information, the County agrees to maintain the confidentiality of such
Confidential Information and will, to the extent permitted by law (including, specifically,
the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act), decline to honor any request for release
of the Confidential Information so designated to persons other than the Company and its
designated officers and representatives. In the event that the County is required by law to
disclose any Confidential Information obtained from the Company to any third party, the
County agrees to provide the Company with prompt advance notice of such requirement
before making such disclosure. In the event an action at law or equity is brought against
the County to require the disclosure of any Confidential Information that the Company
identified as Confidential Information, the County reserves the right to include the
Company in such action, and the Company hereby agrees to bear the reasonable costs
associated with defending the County in such action, including payment of any judgment
against the County for attorneys’ fees or other liabilities related to such action.

Section 4.03. Modification of Project. As long as no Event of Default exists
hereunder, the Company and any Co-Investor shall have the right at any time and from time to
time during the Term hereof to undertake any of the following:

(1) The Company and each other Co-Investor may, at its own expense,
add to the Project Land or any real and personal property as the Company or each
other Co-Investor in its discretion deems useful or desirable.

(i1) In any instance where the Company or any other Co-Investor, in its
discretion, determines that any items included in the Project have become
inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, undesirable, or unnecessary for
operations at the Project, the Company or such other Co-Investor may remove such
items or portions from the Project and sell, trade in, exchange, or otherwise
dispose of them (as a whole or in part) without the consent of the County; as such
may be permitted under the Simplified FILOT Act.

14



(i) ~ The Company and any other Co-Investor may, at any time in its
discretion by written notice to the County, remove any real or personal property
from the Negotiated FILOT (as defined in Section 5.01) set forth in this
Agreement, and thereafter such property will be considered Non-Qualifying
Property and will be subject to FILOT Payments as set forth in Section 5.01(b)(i)
hereof.

ARTICLE V
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES

Section 5.01, Payments in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes.

(a) In accordance with the Act, the parties hereby agree that, during the Term
of the Agreement, the Company and any Co-Investors shall pay annually, with respect to
the Project, a FILOT in the amount calculated as set forth in this Section, to be collected
and enforced in accordance with Section 12-44-90 of the Act.

(b) The FILOT Payment due with respect to each Property Tax Year shall
equal:

(1) With respect to any portion of the Project consisting of Non-
Qualifying Property, if any, as long as such property is located in the Multi-County
Park, a payment equal to the ad valorem taxes that would otherwise be due on such
Non-Qualifying Property if it were taxable giving effect to all credits, exemptions,
rebates and abatement that would be available if such undeveloped land or Non-
Qualifying Property were taxable; and

(ii) With respect to those portions of the Project consisting of
Economic Development Property, for each of the thirty (30) consecutive years
following the year in which such portion of the Project is placed in service, a
payment calculated each year as set forth in paragraphs (c) and (d) of this Section

5.01 (a “Negotiated FILOT™).

(c) The Negotiated FILOT Payments shall be calculated with respect to each
Property Tax Year based on: (i) the fair market value (determined in accordance with
Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(c) of the Code) for (A) any real property component of the
Economic Development Property constructed or purchased in an arm’s length transaction
determined by Department of Revenue using the original income tax basis for South
Carolina income tax purposes without regard to depreciation, otherwise the real property
must be reported at the fair market value for ad valorem property taxes as determined by
appraisal, with the fair market value estimate established for the first year of the
Negotiated FILOT Payments with respect to such property remaining the fair market
value of such real property for the entire Term hereof, and (B) the personal property
component of the Economic Development Property determined by Department of
Revenue using the original tax basis for South Carolina income tax purposes less
depreciation allowable for property tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-

15



50(A)(1)(c) of the Code); (ii) a fixed millage rate equal to the Project Millage Rate, for
the entire Term of this Agreement; and (iif) an assessment ratio of 6%. All such
calculations shall take into account all deductions for depreciation or diminution in value
allowed by the Code or by the tax laws generally, as well as tax exemptions which would
have been applicable if such property were subject to ad valorem taxes, except the
exemption allowed pursuant to Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State
of South Carolina and the exemptions allowed pursuant to Sections 12-37-220(B)(32)
and (34) of the Code.

(d)  Special Source Revenue Credits shall be provided in the amount of forty
percent (40%) of each annual FILOT Payment, for each year of the Term. Such Special
Source Revenue Credits shall be applied automatically and reflected on each year’s
property tax bill provided to the Company.

(e) The FILOT payments are to be recalculated:

(i) to reduce such payments in the event the Company or any Co-
Investor disposes of any part of the Project within the meaning of Section 12-44-
50(B) of the Code and as provided in Section 4.03 hereof, by the amount
applicable to the Released Property;

(ii) to increase such payments, based on the methodology set forth in
Section 5.01(c) hereof, in the event the Company or any Co-Investor adds property
(other than Replacement Property) to the Project; or

(iii)  to adjust such payments if the Company or any Co-Investor elects
to convert any portion of the Project from the Negotiated FILOT to the FILOT
required by Section 5.01(b)(i) above, as permitted by Section 4.03(a)(iii).

43 To the extent permitted by law, because the FILOT Payments agreed to
herein are intended to be paid by the Company or any Co-Investor to the County in lieu
of taxes, it is agreed that said FILOT Payments shall not, as to any year, be in any amount
greater than what would otherwise be payable by the Company or such Co-Investor to the
County in property taxes if the Company or such Co-Investor had not entered into a fee-
in-lieu of taxes arrangement with the County (except it is not intended that said FILOT
Payments would necessarily be less than such property taxes to the extent that the
constitutional abatement of property taxes would otherwise apply).

(g) Upon the Company’s or any Co-Investor’s installation of any
Replacement Property for any portion of the Project removed under Section 4.03 hereof
and sold, scrapped, or disposed of by the Company or such Co-Investor, such
Replacement Property shall become subject to Negotiated FILOT Payments to the fullest
extent allowed by law, subject to the following rules:

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as
the Economic Development Property it is replacing. Replacement Property is
deemed to replace the oldest property subject to the FILOT, whether real or

16



personal, which is disposed of in the same Property Tax Year as the Replacement
Property is placed in service. Replacement Property qualifies for Negotiated
FILOT Payments up to the original income tax basis of the Economic
Development Property which it is replacing. More than one piece of property can
replace a single piece of property. To the extent that the income tax basis of the
Replacement Property exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic
Development Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject to
payments equal to the ad valorem taxes which would have been paid on such
property but for this Agreement. Replacement property is entitled to the FILOT
payment for the period of time remaining on the thirty-year FILOT period for the
property which it is replacing.

(i1) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the Negotiated
FILOT payment shall be recorded using its income tax basis, and the Negotiated
FILOT Payment shall be calculated using the millage rate and assessment ratio
provided on the original property subject to FILOT payment.

(h)  Inthe event that the Act or the FILOT or any portion thereof, are declared,
by a court of competent jurisdiction following allowable appeals, invalid or
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the Company and the County express
their intentions that such payments be reformed so as to afford the Company the
maximum benefit then permitted by law, including, without limitation, the benefits
afforded under Section 12-44-50 of the Code and, specifically, that the Company may, at
the Company’s expense, exercise the rights granted by Section 12-44-160 of the Code
upon terms and conditions (including evidence acceptable to the County that the Project
is free from environmental contamination and mutually agreeable environmental
indemnifications and warranties by the Company) acceptable to the County and the
Company. If the Project is deemed not to be eligible for a Negotiated FILOT pursuant to
the Act in whole or in part, the Company and the County agree that the Company shall
pay an alternate fee-in-lieu of tax calculated in the manner set forth in Section 5.01(b)(i)
hereof. In such event, the Company shall be entitled, to the extent permitted by law: (i)
to enjoy the five-year exemption from ad valorem taxes (or fees in lieu of taxes) provided
by Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, and any
other exemption allowed by law; and (if) to enjoy all allowable depreciation. The
Company agrees that if the FILOT Payments or this Agreement is reformed pursuant to
this subsection (h), that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or
pay any monies to the Company,

() For the Project, this Agreement is automatically terminated in the event
that the investment in the Project in land, buildings, and personal property, including
machinery and equipment, by the Company does not exceed Two Million Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) by the end of the Investment Period. If terminated
pursuant to this subsection (i), the Negotiated FILOT Payments shall revert retroactively
to payments equivalent to what the ad valorem taxes would have been with respect to the
property absent this Agreement. At the time of termination, the Company shall pay to the
County an additional fee equal to the difference between the total amount of property

17



taxes that would have been paid by the Company had the project been taxable, taking into
account exemptions from property taxes that would have been available to the Company,
and the total amount of fee payments actually made by the Company. This additional
amount is subject to interest as provided in Section 12-54-25. The Company agrees, if
the Negotiated FILOT Payments revert to payments equivalent to what the ad valorem
taxes would be pursuant to this subsection (i), that under no circumstance shall the
County be required to refund or pay any monies to the Company.

)] In the event that the Company fails to meet and maintain the Project
Commitment by and through the end of the Investment Period as provided herein
(without regard to any subsequent extensions thereof), the Company shall be obligated to
repay a prorated portion of the Special Source Revenue Credits provided under Section
5.01(d) hereof theretofore received by the Company with respect to qualifying property,
and the amount of Special Source Revenue Credits provided to the Company thereafter
shall be so reduced with such prorated portion to be calculated by determining the
achievement percentage of the Project Commitment as of the last day of the Investment
Period.

For example, and by way of example only, if the Company has invested $19,966,500 as
of the last day of the Investment Period, the Company would have met 85% of the Project
Commitment and would be obliged to repay 15% of the Special Source Revenue Credits
provided under Section 5.01(d) hereof, and the amount of Special Source Revenue
Credits provided to the Company thereafter would be reduced by 15%.

(k) Unless otherwise provided by the Act, any amounts due to the County
under this Section 5.01 by virtue of the application of Sections 5.01(i) hereof shall be
paid within ninety (90) days, following written notice thereof from the County to the
Company or Co-Investor, as applicable.

)] The Company agrees to make FILOT Payments with respect to the
Economic Development Property that it owns for each Property Tax Year during the term
hereof beginning with the Property Tax Year following the year the applicable Economic
Development Property is first placed in service. The FILOT Payments shall be made to
the Jasper County Treasurer on the due dates which would otherwise be applicable for ad
valorem property taxes for the Economic Development Property, with the first payment
being due on the first date following the delivery of this Agreement when, but for this
Agreement, such taxes would have been paid with respect to the Economic Development
Property.

(m) To the extent required by Section 4-29-68(A)(2)(ii) of the Code, if the
Company claims Special Source Revenue Credits as reimbursement for investment in
personal property, including machinery and equipment, if such property is removed from
the Project during the term of this Agreement, the amount of the FILOT Payments due
from the Company on such personal property for the year in which the personal property
was removed from the Project also shall be due for the two (2) years following such
removal.

18



(n) The Company agrees to provide or cause to be provided all funding for the
costs of acquisition, construction, and installation of Infrastructure Improvements (as
defined in the Act) for which reimbursement is being provided by the Special Source
Revenue Credits. In accordance with the Act, such Special Source Revenue Credits shall
not, in the aggregate, exceed the aggregate cost of the Infrastructure Improvements
funded from time to time by the Company.

(0)  The County and the Company acknowledge and agree that any obligation
which the County may incur for the payment of money as a result of the transactions
described in the herein, including providing the Special Source Revenue Credits, shall
never constitute an indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State
constitutional provision or statutory limitation and shall never create a pecuniary liability
of the County or a charge upon its general credit or against its taxing powers but shall be
payable solely out of the funds received by it under this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI

PAYMENTS BY COMPANY

Section 6.01. Defaulted Payments. In the event the Company should fail to make
any of the payments required under this Agreement, the item or installment so in default shall
continue as an obligation of the Company until the amount in default shall have been fully paid.
The Company agrees that the collection and enforcement of the defaulted payment shall be as
provided in Section 12-44-90 of the Code. The Company expressly acknowledges that in the
event of its failure to make the required FILOT Payments when due, that the County is only
required to give notice thereof in accordance with the Section 12-44-90 of the Code, and that no
further notice is required hereunder in order to enforce the remedies set forth in this Section 6.01,
including any notices of default set forth in Article XI hereof. The County’s right to receive
FILOT Payments shall have a first priority lien status pursuant to Section 12-44-90 of the Code
and Chapters 4 and 54 of Title 12 of Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.

ARTICLE VII

CASUALTY AND CONDEMNATION

Section 7.01. Adjustments in the Event of Damage and Destruction or
Condemnation. In the event that the Project or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed, lost
or stolen, or the subject of condemnation proceedings, the Company, in its sole discretion, may
determine whether or not to repair or replace the same. The parties hereto agree that if the
Company decides not to repair or replace all or any portion of the Project pursuant to this
Section, the FILOT required pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof shall be abated in the same manner
and in the same proportion as if ad valorem taxes were payable with respect to the Project.

19



ARTICLE VIII

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

Section 8.01. Use of Project for Lawful Activities. During the Term of this
Agreement, the Company shall use the Project for any lawful purpose that is authorized pursuant
to the Act.

Section 8.02. Indemnification. The Company releases the County, including the
members of the governing body of the County, and the employees, officers, attorneys and agents
of the County (herein collectively referred to as the “Indemnified Parties”) from, agrees that the
Indemnified Parties shall not be liable for, and agrees to hold the Indemnified Parties harmless
against, any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any person that may be
occastoned by any cause whatsoever pertaining to the Company’s performance of its obligations
pursuant to this Agreement, except for that occasioned by grossly negligent or intentional acts of
an Indemnified Party, or by a breach of this Agreement by the County. The Company further
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Indemnified Parties against and from any and all costs,
liabilities, expenses, and claims arising from any breach or default on the part of the Company in
the performance of any covenant or agreement on the part of the Company to be performed
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or arising from any act or negligence of, or negligent
failure to act where there is a duty to do so, by the Company, and from and against all cost,
liability, and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim or action or proceeding
brought thereon.

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the County
contained herein shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and
obligations of the County and not of any member of the County Council or any officer, agent,
attorney, servant, or employee of the County in his or her individual capacity, and, absent bad
faith, no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder or the performance of
any of the covenants and agreements of the County herein contained or for any claims based
thereon against any member of the governing body of the County or any officer, attorney, agent,
servant, or employee of the County.

Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the Indemnified Parties hereto that none
of them shall incur any pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Agreement, any related
agreements or the undertakings required of the County hereunder by reason of the performance
of any act requested of the County by the Company, including all claims, liabilities, or losses
arising in connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing,
nevertheless, if any Indemnified Party shall incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event
the Company shall indemnify and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any
Person, firm, or corporation or other legal entity arising out of the same and all costs and
expenses incurred in connection with any such claim or in connection with any action or
proceeding brought thereon, provided, however, that nothing herein shall absolve the
Indemnified Parties from, or entitle the Indemnified Parties to indemnification from, any
obligation such Indemnified Party has specifically agreed to undertake (including, without
limitation, the obligation to place and maintain the Land within a multi-county park). If any
action, suit, or proceeding is brought against any Indemnified Party to which such Indemnified

20



Party is entitled to indemnification, such Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the Company,
and the Company shall have the sole right and duty to assume, and shall assume, the defense
thereof, at its expense, with full power to litigate, compromise, or settle the same in its sole
discretion; provided the Company shall obtain the prior written consent of the County to settle
any such claim unless such claim is for monetary damages for which the Company has the ability
to, and do, pay. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Indemnified Party is the County, in the
event the County reasonably believes there are defenses available to it that are not being pursued
or that the counsel engaged by the Company reasonably determines that a conflict of interest
exists between the County and the Company, the County may, in its sole discretion, hire
independent counsel to pursue its own defense, and the Company shall be liable for the
reasonable cost of such counsel.

The indemnity specified in this Section shall be in addition to any heretofore extended by
the Company to any Indemnified Party and shall survive the termination of this Agreement with
respect to liability arising out of any event or act occurring prior to such termination.

Section 8.03. Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates. The Company may designate,
from time to time, other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions of Sections
12-44-30(19) or (20), respectively, and Section 12-44-130 of the Simplified FILOT Act, which
Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates shall be Persons who join with the Company and other Co-
Investors and make investments with respect to the Project, or who participate in the financing of
such investments, who agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement and who
shall be Affiliates of Company or other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates, any tenant leasing all or
a portion of the Project from the Company or any other existing Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or
other Persons described in Section 9.01 hereof. All other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates who
otherwise meet the requirements of Section 12-44-30 (19) or (20) and Section 12-44-130 of the
Simplified FILOT Act are subject to approval in accordance with Section 12-44-130(D) of the
Act. To the extent that the aggregate investment in the Project by the end of the Investment
Period by all Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates exceeds $5,000,000.00, to the extent permitted by
Section 12-44-30(19) of the Simplified FILOT Act, all investment by such Sponsors and Sponsor
Affiliates during the Investment Period shall qualify for the FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01 of
this Agreement (subject to the other conditions set forth therein) regardless of whether each such
entity invested amounts equal to the Investment Commitment by the end of the Investment
Period. Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall provide the County and the Department of Revenue
with written notice of any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section
8.04 in accordance with Section 12-44-130(C) of the Simplified FILOT Act. The parties agree
that, if any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate ceases to become party to this Agreement, the
Agreement shall continue to remain in effect with respect to any remaining Sponsors or Sponsor
Affiliates.

Section 8.04. Compliance with GASB 77. The Company agrees annually to
prepare Form SC DOR PT-300G (Schedule G — Fee in Lieu of Tax Supplemental) with respect
to the Project, even if the Company is not required to file such form with the Department of
Revenue, and provide a copy to the County not later than June 30 of each year of the Term of
this Agreement in order to assist the County in complying with Statement No. 77 of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board known as “GASB 77.” The Company agrees further

21



to cooperate with the County in providing reasonably requested information regarding the
Project in order to assist the County in complying with GASB 77.

ARTICLE IX
FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS; CONVEYANCES; ASSIGNMENTS

Section 9.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment. The Company
and any Co-Investor may at any time: (a) assign or transfer all or any of its rights and interests

hereunder or with respect to the Project to any Person; or (b) enter into any lending, financing,
security, or similar arrangement or succession of such arrangements with any financing entity
with respect to the Agreement or the Project, including without limitation any sale, leaseback, or
other financing lease arrangement; provided that, in connection with any of the foregoing
transfers: (i) except in connection with any assignment or transfer to any Affiliate of the
Company or such Co-Investor, or transfers pursuant to clause (b) above, including, for the
avoidance of doubt, any assignment or transfer to any entity that assumes from the Company the
purchase agreement with respect to the Land (as to which such transfers the County hereby
consents), the Company or such Co-Investor shall first obtain the prior written approval or
subsequent ratification of the County, in the County’s sole discretion, and evidenced, to the
extent allowed by law, by a Resolution of County Council or a writing signed by an officer of the
County; (if) the Company or the applicable Co-Investor, transferee, or financing entity shall,
within sixty (60) days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department
of Revenue a true and complete copy of any such transfer agreement; and (iii) the Company or
the applicable Co-Investor and the transferee shall comply with all other requirements of the
Transfer Provisions.

The Company acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest under this Agreement or in
the Project may cause the Project to become ineligible for a Negotiated FILOT or result in
penalties under the Act absent compliance by the Company with the Transfer Provisions.

Section 9.02. Relative Rights of County and Financing Entities as Secured
Parties. The parties acknowledge the application of the provisions of Section 12-44-90 of the
Act, and that the County’s right to receive FILOT Payments hereunder shall be the same as its
rights conferred under Title 12, Chapter 49 and 54, among others, of the Code relating to the
collection and enforcement of ad valorem property taxes.

ARTICLE X

TERM; TERMINATION

Section 10.01. Term. Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms and
provisions herein contained, this Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect for a
term commencing on the date on which the Company executes this Agreement, and ending at
midnight on the last day of the Property Tax Year in which the last Negotiated FILOT Payment
is due hereunder. This Agreement has a term of thirty (30) years, as calculated pursuant to the
respective dates when the relevant portions of the Project are placed in service, and as discussed
in greater detail in this Agreement. The County’s rights to receive indemnification and payment

22



of Administration Expenses pursuant hereto shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

Section 10.02. Termination.

(a) The County and the Company may agree to terminate this Agreement at
any time, or the Company may, at its option, terminate this Agreement at any time upon
providing the County thirty (30) days’ notice of such termination, in which event the
Project shall be subject to ad valorem taxes from the date of termination. In the event
that this Agreement is terminated by the operation of this Section 10.02 at any time
during the initial Investment Period prior to the Company’s investment of at least Two
Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in the Project, amounts due to
the County as a result thereof shall be calculated as provided in Section 5.01(i) hereof.
The County’s rights to receive payment for such ad valorem taxes and its rights to
enforce the terms of this Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement.

(b)  This Agreement will automatically terminate as provided in Section 12-
44-140(B) of the Act in the event the investment requirements at the Project set forth in
Section 12-44-140(B) of the Act are not satisfied.

(¢)  The FILOT incentive with respect to any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate will
automatically terminate as provided in Section 12-44-140(C) of the Act in the event such
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate no longer has the statutory minimum level of investment at
the Project.

(d)  This Agreement will terminate in whole or in part in the event the
Company or any other Co-Investor removes real or personal property from the
Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 4.03(iii) hereof (with such termination effective
solely with respect to such removed property).

(e) This Agreement will automatically terminate as provided in Section
5.01(1) hereof.

() This Agreement will terminate in whole or in part in the event of casualty
or condemnation at the Project and the FILOT is abated pursuant to Section 7.01 hereof
(with such termination effective solely with respect to the property subject to such
casualty or condemnation).

23



ARTICLE XI
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 11.01. Events of Default by Company.

(a) Any one or more of the following events (herein called an “Event of
Default”, or collectively “Events of Default”) shall constitute an Event of Default (but
solely with respect to the defaulting entity):

(1) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any FILOT
Payments,

2) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any
indemnification payments or Administration Expenses, which default shall not
have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof
from the County;

3) if default shall be made by the Company in the due performance of or
compliance with any of the terms hereof, including payment, other than those
referred to in the foregoing paragraphs (1) and (2), and such default shall continue
for sixty (60) days after the County shall have given the Company written notice
of such default, provided, the Company shall have such longer period of time as
necessary to cure such default if the Company proceeds promptly to cure such
default and thereafter to prosecute the curing of such default with due diligence;
and provided further, that no Event of Default shall exist under this paragraph (3)
during any period when there is pending, before any judicial or administrative
tribunal having jurisdiction, any proceeding in which the Company has contested
the occurrence of such default.

(4) if any material representation or warranty on the part of the Company or
any Co-Investor made herein (including representations regarding the capital
investment resulting from the Project), or in any report, certificate, financial or
other statement furnished in connection with this Agreement or the transactions
described in this Agreement shall have been false or misleading in any material
respect.

(b) The failure of the Company or any other Co-Investor to meet the
[nvestment Commitment as set forth herein shall not be deemed to be an Event of Default
under this Agreement, and the County’s sole recourse for failure to meet the Investment
Requirement shall be as set forth in Section 5.01 hereof.

Section 11.02. Remedies on Event of Default by Company. Upon the occurrence
and continuance of any Event of Default by Company (and the expiration of any applicable cure
periods), the County may exercise any of the following remedies, any of which may be exercised
at any time during the periods permitted under the following clauses:

24



(a) terminate this Agreement by delivery of written notice to the Company not
less than thirty (30) days prior to the termination date specified therein; or

(b)  take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or
desirable to collect the amounts then due and thereafter to become due or to enforce
observance or performance of any covenant, condition, or agreement of the Company
under this Agreement.

Section 11.03. Default by County. Upon the default of the County in the
performance of any of its obligations hereunder, the Company may take whatever action at law
or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this Agreement,
including without limitation, a suit for mandamus or specific performance.

Section 11.04. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event any
warranty, covenant, or agreement contained in this Agreement should be breached by the
Company or the County and thereafter waived by the other party to this Agreement, such waiver
shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other
breach.

Section 11.05. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Co-Investor or
Sponsor Affiliate, if the County employs attorneys or incurs other reasonable expenses for the
collection of payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of
any obligation or agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand
therefor, to reimbursement of the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable
expenses so incurred.

ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 12.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative. Each right, power, and remedy
of the County or of the Company or any other Co-Investor provided for in this Agreement shall
be cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right, power or remedy
provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, in any
Jurisdiction where such rights, powers and remedies are sought to be enforced; and the exercise
by the County or by the Company or any other Co-Investor of any one or more of the rights,
powers or remedies provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity or by statute or otherwise shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by the
County or by the Company or any other Co-Investor of any or all such other rights, powers or
remedies.

Section 12.02. Successors and Assigns. The terms and provisions of this

Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder.

25



Section 12.03. Administration Expenses. The Company agrees to reimburse the
County from time to time for its Administration Expenses promptly upon written request
therefore, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after receiving the written request from the
County. The written request shall include a description of the nature of the Administration
Expenses. The Administration Expenses reimbursable to the County pursuant to this Agreement
for the initial drafting and negotiation of this Agreement and related documentation shall not
exceed Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00).

Section 12.04 Rules of Construction.  The County and the Company
acknowledge and agree that each has been represented by legal counsel of its choice throughout
the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement, that each has participated in the drafting hereof
and that this Agreement will not be construed in favor of or against either party solely on the
basis of such party’s drafting or participation in the drafting of any portion of this Agreement.

Section 12.05. Notices: Demands: Requests. All notices, demands and requests
to be given or made hereunder to or by the County or the Company shall be in writing and shall
be deemed to be properly given or made if sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid
or via facsimile or other commonly-used electronic transmission or reputable courier service,
addressed as follows or to such other persons and places as may be designated in writing by such

party.
(a) As to the County:

Jasper County

Attn: Jasper County Administrator
358 Third Avenue

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Jasper County

Attn: Jasper County Attorney
358 Third Avenue

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936

(b)  Asto the Company:

[ ]
[ ]
[ 1

With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Womble Bond Dickinson (US) LLP
Attn: Ms. Stephanie L. Yarbrough
5 Exchange Street

Charleston, South Carolina 29401

26



Section 12.06. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina.

Section 12.07. Entire Understanding. This Agreement expresses the entire
understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto with each other, and neither party hereto
has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation to the other party which is
not expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection with the
execution and delivery hereof.

Section 12.08. Severability. In the event that any clause or provision of this
Agreement shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of
such clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof.

Section 12.09. Headings and Table of Contents; References. The headings of the
Agreement and any Table of Contents annexed hereto are for convenience of reference only and
shall not define or limit the provisions hereof or affect the meaning or interpretation hereof. All
references in this Agreement to particular articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement
are references to the designated articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement.

Section 12.10. Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

Section 12.11. Amendments. Subject to the limitations set forth in the Act, this
Agreement may be amended, or the rights and interest of the parties hereunder surrendered, only
by a writing signed by all parties. The County agrees that, to the extent allowed by law, such
amendment may be approved by a Resolution of County Council.

Section 12.12. Waiver. Either party may waive compliance by the other party
with any term or condition of this Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party.

Section 12.13. Force Majeure. Except with respect to (i) the obligation to invest
at least Two Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) in Economic Development
Property by the end of the Investment Period; and (ii) the payment obligations with respect to
FILOT Payments, the Administrative Expenses and indemnification of the Indemnified Parties
hereunder, the Company and any Co-Investors shall not be responsible for any delays or non-
performance caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by strikes, accidents, freight
embargoes, labor shortages, fire, floods, inability to obtain materials, war or national emergency,
acts of God, and any other cause, similar or dissimilar, beyond the Company’s reasonable
control.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

27



IN WITNESS THEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has
caused this Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the Council Chair and to be
attested by the Clerk to Council; and the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed by
its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written.

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

(SEAL)
By:
Barbara Clark
Chair of County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
ATTEST:
By:
Wanda Simmons
Clerk to County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina
[PROJECT DOLPHIN]
By:
Name:
Title:

[Signature Page 10 FILOT Agreement]



EXHIBIT A
Land

[to be inserted before third reading]



WBD Draft of 1.31.22

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

) AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT
COUNTY OF JASPER ) OF MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/
)
)

BUSINESS PARK (HARDEEVILLE PARK)
COUNTY OF HAMPTON

THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF MULTI-COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK (HARDEEVILLE PARK) for the establishment of a multi-county
industrial/business park to be located within Jasper County and Hampton County is made and entered into as
of » 2022, by and between Jasper County, South Carolina (“Jasper County”) and Hampton County,
South Carolina (“Hampton County™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Jasper County and Hampton County are contiguous counties which, pursuant to
Ordinance No. , enacted by Jasper County Council on February 22, 2022, and Ordinance No.
enacted by Hampton County Councit on , 2022, have each determined that, in

order to promote economic development and thus encourage investment and provide additional employment
opportunities within both of said counties, there should be established in Jasper County a multi-county
industrial/business park (the “Park™), to be located upon property more particularly described in Exhibit A

(Jasper); and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the establishment of the Park, property comprising the Park and
all property having a situs therein is exempt from ad valorem taxation pursuant to Article VIII, Section
13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution, but the owners or lessees of such property shall pay annual fees
in an amount equivalent to the property taxes or other in-lieu-of payments that would have been due and
payable except for such exemption.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement, representations and benefits
contained in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Binding Agreement, This Agreement serves as a written instrument setting forth the entire
agreement between the parties and shall be binding on Jasper County and Hampton County, their successors
and assigns.

2. Authorization. Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution provides that
counties may jointly develop an industrial or business park with other counties within the geographical
boundaries of one or more of the member counties, provided that certain conditions specified therein are met
and further provided that the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina provides by law a manner in
which the value of property in such park will be considered for purposes of bonded indebtedness of political
subdivisions and schoot districts and for purposes of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to
any provision of law which measures the relative fiscal capacity of a school district to support its schools
based on the assessed valuation of taxable property in the district as compared to the assessed valuation of
taxable property in all school districts in South Carolina. The Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as
amended (the “Code”) and particularly, Section 4-1-170 thereof, satisfies the conditions imposed by Article
VIIL, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution and provides the statutory vehicle whereby a multi-
county industrial or business park may be created.

3. Location of the Park.

WBD (US) 55374672v3



WBD Drafi of 1.31.22
{A) The Park consists of property that is located in Jasper County and which now or will be
owned by project sponsors for the purpose of establishing industrial, distribution and/or commercial
facilities, the property being more particularly described in Exhibit A hereto. It is specifically recognized
that the Park may from time to time consist of non-contiguous properties within Jasper County. The
boundaries of the Park may be enlarged or diminished from time to time as authorized by ordinance of the
county council of Jasper County (“Jasper Approval”), and resolution of the county council of Hampton
County (“Hampton Approval”). Except as permitted by the Intergovernmental Agreement dated as of
November 5, 2021 between Jasper County and the City of Hardeeville, South Carolina (“2021 1GA”)
attached hereto as Exhibit B, if any property proposed for inclusion in the Park is located, at the time such
inclusion is proposed, within the boundaries of a municipality, then the municipality must give its consent
prior to the inclusion of the property in the Park.

(B) In the event of any enlargement or diminution of the boundaries of the Park, this
Agreement shall be deemed amended and there shall be attached hereto a revised Exhibit A which shall
contain a legal description of the boundaries of the Park as enlarged or diminished, together with a copy
of Jasper Approval and the Hampton Approval pursuant to which such enlargement or diminution was
authorized.

(&) Prior to any Jasper Approval authorizing the diminution of the boundaries of the Park, a
public hearing shall first be held by Jasper County Council. Notice of such public hearing shall be published
in a newspaper of general circulation in Jasper County, at least once and not less than fifteen (15) days prior
to such hearing. Notice of such public hearing shall also be given by certified mail that is deposited with the
U.S. Postal Service at least fifteen (15) days prior to such public hearing upon the owner and, if applicable,
the lessee of any property which would be excluded from the Park by virtue of the diminution.

4, Fee in Lieu of Taxes.

(A) Pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution, all property
located in the Park is exempt from all ad valorem taxation. The owners or lessees of any property situated
in the Park shall pay in accordance with this Agreement an amount (referred to as fees in lieu of ad valorem
taxes) equivalent to the ad valorem taxes or other in-lieu-of payments that would have been due and payable
but for the location of such property within the Park,

(B) The amount of the annual fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes may be reduced if the owner or
lessee of property located in the Park (i) has negotiated a fee in-lieu-of taxes arrangement with respect to
the property with Jasper County pursuant to the provisions of Sections 12-44-10, et seq., 4-12-30, or 4-29-
67 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, or any successor provisions thereto as may be
provided under South Carolina law, or (ii) receives a special source revenue or infrastructure credit with
respect to the property under the provisions of Section 4-1-175 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976,
as amended, or any successor provisions thereto as may be provided under South Carolina law (collectively,
(1) and (ii), “Negotiated Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreements™).

s. Allocation of Expenses. Jasper County and Hampton County shall bear expenses incurred
in connection with the Park, including, but not limited to, those incurred in the administration, development,
operation, maintenance and promotion of the Park, in the following proportions:

A. Jasper County — 100%
B. Hampton County — 0%

6. Allocation of Revenues. Jasper County and Hampton County shall receive an allocation of
all revenues generated by the Park through payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes (“Park
Revenues”) in the following proportions:

WBD (US) 55374672v3



WBD Draft of 1.31.22
A Jasper County - 99%
B. Hampton County — 1%

Any payment from Jasper County to Hampton County of Hampton County's allocable share of Park
Revenues shall be made and accompanied by a statement showing the manner in which total payment
and each County's share were calculated. If any Park Revenues are received by Jasper County through
payment by any owner, or any lessee/tenant, or any other taxpayer is made under protest, or otherwise
as part of a dispute, then Jasper County is not obligated to pay Hampton County more than Hampton
County's share of the undisputed portion of the Park Revenues until thirty (30) days after the final
resolution of the protest or dispute.

1 Revenue Allocation within Each County. Park Revenues received shall be distributed to
and within the County as follows:

(A)  Revenues generated by the Park through the payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes
shall be distributed to Jasper County and to Hampton County, as the case may be, according to the
proportions established by this Agreement. With respect to revenues allocable to Jasper County by way of
fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes generated from properties within the Park, such revenue shall be distributed
within Jasper County pursuant to the 2021 IGA.

(B)  With respect to revenues allocable to Hampton County by way of fees in lieu of ad valorem
taxes generated from properties located in the Park, such revenue shall be distributed within Hampton
County in accordance with a distribution scheme established by the Hampton County Council and, in the
absence of any such adopted distribution scheme, on a pro rata basis to the millage levying entities in
Hampton County.

8. Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Pursuant to Title 4 or Title 12 of the Code. It is
hereby agreed that the entry by Jasper County into any one or more Negotiated Fee in Lieu of Tax
Agreements with respect to property located within the Park and the terms of such agreements shall be
at the sole discretion of Jasper County.

9. Consent by the City and Other Municipalities. In accordance with the Act, the City
of Hardeeville, by Resolution No. 2021-11-4F and the terms of the 2021 IGA, has consented to the
location of the property within the City’s geographical boundaries in the Park as described on Exhibit A
as of the effective date of this agreement.

10. Assessed Valuation, For the purpose of calculating the bonded indebtedness limitation
and for the purpose of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to Section 59-20-20(3) of the
Code, allocation of the assessed value of property within the Park to Jasper County and Hampton County
and to each of the taxing entities within the participating counties shall be in accordance with the
allocation of revenue received and retained by each of the counties and by each of the taxing entities
within the participating counties, pursuant to Sections 6 and 7 herein.

11. Governing Laws and Regulations. Any applicable ordinances and regulations of Jasper
County including those concerning zoning, health and safety, and building code requirements shail apply to
the Park properties located in the Jasper County portion of the Park unless any such property is within the
boundaries of a municipality in which case, the municipality's applicable ordinances and regulations shall

apply.

1. South Carolina Law Controlling. This Agreement has been entered into in the State of
South Carolina and shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with South Carolina law.

WBD (US) 55374672v3



WBD Draft of 1.31.22

12, Severability. In the event and to the extent (and only to the extent) that any provision

or any part of a provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of

competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the remainder of that
provision or any other provision of this Agreement.

13. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts.

14. Additional Parties. This Agreement may be amended from time to time to add additional
counties located in South Carolina, subject to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the Constitution of South
Carolina and Title 4, Chapter | of the Code, by ordinance of the county council of Jasper County, and by
resolution of the county council of Hampton County; provided, however, that to the extent permitted by
law, additional counties may be added as parties hereto with only the enactment of an ordinance of the
county council of Jasper County only in the event that such additional county's allocation of Park Revenues
hereunder shall be allocated solely out of Jasper County's residual net share of the Park Revenues provided
for its use and distribution pursuant to Section 7 hereof.

15. Term; Termination. Except as specifically provided in this Section 15, Jasper County
and Hampton County agree that this Agreement may not be terminated in its entirety by unilateral action
of any party and shall remain in effect for a period equal to the longer of (i) thirty-one (31) years
commencing with the effective date of this Agreement or (ii} a period of time of sufficient length to
facilitate any special source revenue credits due with respect to Park property. This Agreement may be
terminated at any time upon adoption of ordinances by the County Councils of both Jasper County and
Hampton County, which ordinances must specifically authorize the termination of this Agreement.

16. Law Enforcement Jurisdiction. Jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise all authority
and power within the boundaries of the Park properties is vested with the Sheriff's Office of Jasper County,
for matters within their jurisdiction. If any of the Park properties are within the boundaries of a
municipality, then jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise law enforcement jurisdiction is also vested with
the law enforcement officials of the municipality for matters within their jurisdiction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the day
and the year first above written.

[signatures on following page]

WBD (US) 55374672v3



[SEAL]
Attest:
By:

County Council Clerk
Jasper County, South Carolina

[SEAL]
Attest:

By:

County Council Clerk
Hampton County, South Carolina

WBD (US) 55374672v3

WBD Draft of 1.31.22

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Chairman, County Council
Jasper County, South Carolina

HAMPTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Chairman, County Council
Hampton County, South Carolina



WBD Draft of 1.31.22
Exhibit A (Jasper)
PARK PROPERTY

Lot 13, 26.48 Acres
A Section of Parcel C — West Parcel
A Portion of Hardeeville Commerce Park
City of Hardeeville, Jasper County, South Carolina

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land situated, lying and being in

the City of Hardeeville, Jasper County, South Carolina

as shown on that certain survey prepared by Surveying Consultants,

by Terry G. Hatchell, S.C.R.L.S. No. 11059,

Entitled “A Minor Subdivision Survey of Lot 13, Parcel C — West North Parcel &
Parcel C — West South Parcel, City of Hardeeville, Jasper County, South Carolina”,
Dated: 07/06/2021,

and being more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at a point marked by a 3” Concrete Monument {Found) at the intersection of the
Southern Right-of-Way of Paynesville Road (aka State Road S-27-156) and the

Western Right-of-Way of Mockingbird Drive,

said point having SC State Plane Coordinates N. 162,050.840 E. 1,973,462.190

said point being the Point of Commencing,

From the Point of Commencing in a Westerly direction as follows:

Thence S 45°46'50" W A Distance Of 174.82° to a 1/2” Iron Pin (Found),
Thence S 45°46'50" W A Distance Of 14.10’ to a 1/2” Iron Pin (Found),

Thence S 01°08'38" W A Distance Of 350.23° to a 1/2” Iron Pipe (Found),
Thence S 01°11'16" W A Distance Of 511.18” to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence N 87°14'54" W A Distance Of 135.95° to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 65°13'59" W A Distance Of 67.44’ to a 1/2” [ron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 00°33'04" W A Distance Of 218.99° to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence § 87°14'54" W A Distance Of 120.87" to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence N 89°35'35" W A Distance Of 47.03° to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence along a Curve to the left having an Arc Length of 497.01°,

a Radius 0f 420.61°, a Tangent of 188.30°, a Chord Length of 354.73°,

a Chord Bearing of S 66°17'22" W, and a Delta Angle of 48°14'06"

to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),

Said point having SC State Plane Coordinates N. 160,673.440 E. 1,972,869.061
Said point being the Point of Beginning,

From the Point of Beginning in a Southerly direction as follows:
Thence along a Curve to the left having an Arc Length of 297.94°,
a Radius 0f 420.61°, a Tangent of 155.53", a Chord Length of 291.75°,

a Chord Bearing of S 21°52'45" W, and a Delta Angle of 40°35'10"
to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),

WBD (US) 553746723



WBD Draft of 1.31.22
Thence S 01°35'10" W A Distance Of 717.12' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence along a Curve to the left having an Arc Length of 103.39°,
a Radius of 350.00°, a Tangent of 52.08°, a Chord Length of 103.02°,
a Chord Bearing of S 06°52'37" E, and a Delta Angle of 16°55'33"
to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 15°20'24" E A Distance Of 137.38' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence along a Curve to the right having an Arc Length of 47.24°,
a Radius of 250.00°, a Tangent of 23.69°, a Chord Length of 47.12°,
a Chord Bearing of S 09°55'34" E, and a Delta Angle of 10°49'39"
to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Found),
Thence S 04°30'45" E A Distance Of 14.42' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 85°58'12" W A Distance Of 314.12' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 63°4429" W A Distance Of 145.19' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),

Thence N 57°59'41" W A Distance Of 180.16' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 30°57'50" W A Distance Of 121.48' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 31°40'51" W A Distance Of 875.96' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence N 32°42'55" E A Distance Of 489.04' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence S 88°48'35" W A Distance Of 699.36' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),
Thence S 57°17'78" W A Distance Of 268.58' to a 1/2” Iron Pin W/Cap (Set),

Said point being the Point of Beginning,
Said lot having an area of 26.48 Acres, more or less

WBD (US) 55374672v3



WBD Draft of 1.31.22
Exhibit B
Intergovernmental Agreement

WBD (US) 55374672v3



